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Page 4 %

1 This cause came on for hearing on the 2lst day ofg
2 June 2006, in the United States District Court for the Eastern %
3 District of Tennessee, Northern Division, the Honorable H. §
4 Bruce Guyton presiding. §
5 The Court having been duly opened, the following g
6 proceedings were continued from the previcus day: i
7 DEPUTY CLERK: All rise. %
8 ' DEPUTY COURT: Bring the jury in. g
9 (Jury in at 9:25) %
10 DEPUTY CLERK: The United States District §
11 Court for the Eastern District of Tennessee 1s now §
12 open with the Honorable Bruce Guyton, United States §
13 Magistrate Judge presiding. Please come tO order and §
14 | be seated. Docket No. 3:05-CV-304, Thomas Neely v Fox %
15 of Oak‘Ridge. %
16 THOMAS NEELY, §
17 the plaintiff, having been previously sworn, returned %
18 to the stand to continue testimony as follows: g
19 ‘ DIRECT EXAMINATION (Continued) zg
20 BY MR. ENGLISH: %
21 Q You are Thomas Neely that testified yesterday? %
22 A Yes, I am. %
|

23 Q Tom, when I asked you about a wreck, if yecu §
24 had ever had any wrecks before the one we're here about today, %
25 you told me you had not. Have you rethoughtT that? %
|
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Page 5 i
1 A Yes, sir. I forgot I was in an automobile %
2 accident over 20 years ago. And I just forgot about it. %
3 Q Okay. Was it much like the one we are here g
4 today about? %
5 A Yes. I clipped the rear end of another i
6 vehicle. %
7 Q Did you acknowledge responsibility for that? %
8 A ves, I did. %
9 Q Okay. You also told me.about a deer running ;
i0 into you. But you didn't ccnsider that a wreck? %
11 A I didn't. A deer actually hit me on the way
:
12 to work one night. &nd I didn't -- %
13 Q Okay. When you went out to measure the curb %
.
14 next to the entrance that the car in front of you was entering,§
15 yoﬁ testified yesterday that you measured it seven inches above %
16 the lowest part next to the curb? %
17 A Yes. As I pointed out in the photo. %
18l Q Was the entrance tec the car that was'going §
:
19 across, what was the height of that entrance? %
20 A The lowest point was three inches. é
:
21 Q Ckay. And what was the highest point? E
22 A Seven inches. %
23 0 Okay. So there was a distinct bump there? %
24 A Yes. §
25 Q0 Okay. When you slowed down so that you %
%
!
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1 wouldn't hit that car that was turning, in the rear, how fast é
2 do you think you were going when you were inmpacted? ;
3 A ‘ I was nearly at a stop. %
4 Q Okay. And had you been following that car a f
5 safe distance behind in your opinion? g
6 A Yes. Three, four, five car lengths. I had %
7 seen him turn on his turn signal. §
8 9] Okay. And whenever he did that, what did you %
9 do? %
10 A I slowed down too, along with the other %
11 vehicles. 2
12 Q Okay. Did you put your turn signal on? %
13 A No. ?
i4 Q Okay. You weren't planning on turning there? é
15 A No. I had no intention. %
16 Q Okay. And when I asked you yesterday about %
17 the effects of the injuries from this wreck on your life, has %
18 it had any effect on your ability to pay your bills? %
19 A ves. I'm currently behind in about everything %
20 that we have. I'm delinquent on cne month in our land payment. i
21 I was almost two. But we did manage to make one payment. When é
22 we get close to that second month, the people from the bank %
23 threaten to foreclose, %
24 MR. WOODFIN: Your Honor, I'm going object to §
25 that. That's hearsay. |
L

i

i
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1 THE COURT: Sustained.
2 BY MR. ENGLISH:
3 0 | Have you ever had any problems paying bills to |
4 support you and your wife and your children before this car g
5 accident? %
:
0 A No, I haven't. I've always managed to make a ﬁ
7 living in some capacity. 1I've never made a great deal of i
8 money. I've always worked to support my family. é
9 Q Okay. %
1C P\ And now I'm unable to do that. g
11 0 When did you first start working, Tom? %
12 A I started mowing grass when I was probably 12 §
13 or 13 years of age. I mowed grass all summer long to make %
14 enough money to buy a new push mower, because my dad didn't %
15 want me using his to wear 1t out. g
16 Q Okay. Did you =-- did you work continuously at%
17 one job or another up until the time of this wreck? %
18 A Yes. I have worked all the way through trying%
19 tg support my family. I've even dug graves by hand with my %
20 wife's injlaws in order to support our family. g
21 Q Okay. %
22 A It just really tears me up toc a great deal -- E
23 point that T can't get out and work and support them. I'm %
24 SOrry. i
25 C That's okay. Thank you, Tom. %
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Page 8

THE COURT: Are you ready, Mr. Neely?
MR. NEELY: Yes. I'm sorry.

THE CCURT: That's okay.

Mr. Woodfin?

MR. WOODFIN: Thank you, Judge.

CROSS EXAMINATION

Mr. Neely, when did you go out and take this

I took it yesterday.

This photegraph here?

It was taken Monday.

Monday of this week?

Yes. I took the measurements on the curb

clarify that, I'm sorry.

Well, when was it, sir? Monday of this week?

T took the measurement of the curbk, yes, on

When did you take the photograph?
I didn't take the photograph.

You didn't? I thought you told your lawyer

No.

Okay. You went out there and took

measurements with what, a level and measuring tape?

e R R R B R R TR T e
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Q

then measu
Jiy
the best o©

Q

you were able to do that, weren't you?

A

Q

consciousness at the scene of this accident?

A

Q

that what you're telling us?

A

Q

A

Q

not lose consciousness?

A

Q

did lose consciousness at the scene of the accident?

A

told the doctors. No.

Q

doctors say that you did tell them that you lost consciousness
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A measuring tape. Yes, sir.
30 you got down and measured the curb, and
red the part where the cars turn in on that driveway?

I used a measuring tape and looked at 1t to

e e T e

f my ability. Yes, sir.

Despite the fact that you can't do anything,
sir.

I pulled out a measuring tape. Yes,

T

Is it yeour testimony that you lost

TR

T e SR

I don't know whether or not —— I did or not.

You didn't know whether you did or didn't. Is

S e

T don't think I did at the time.

st

S R T R

Do you remember when I took your deposition?
Yes.

Do you remember when you told me that you did

T

I do not remember that statement.

Do you remember telling your doctors that you

I do not remember all the exact wording that I

Do you have any explanation for why the

B P T e e P

i
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1 at the scene of the accident? %
2 A No, I do not. %
:
3 Q Do you remember when I tcok your deposition é
4 and you told me you were having memory problems? %
5 A Yes, sir. I do. %
6 Q Do you remember telling me that you téld your %
7 doctors that you were reporting to them that you had memory g
8 problems? %
9 A Yes, do. ;
10 ¢} Do you have any explanation for why there's no§
11 mention by the doctors that you have here testifying for you %
12 today that you were reporting memory problems? %
13 A No. §
14 Q Any explanation for that? What was your %
15 answer, sir? §
16 A No. g
17 Q Do you remember telling me that you had a %
18 bruise on your back after this accident? %
19 A No. %
20 o) Did you tell your doctor you had a bruise on %
21 your back? i
22 A Yes. I had a place on my back. I could nct %
23 see 1t. %
24 0 You say it was there ever since the acéident? E
25 A Yes.

%Ml&ummmmwmﬂmm
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1 Q Do you have any explanation for why your E
2 doctor disagrees with that? %
3 A No. %
4 Q Do you remember I asked you what kind of paing
5 you were having in your deposition? %
& A Yes. %
7 Q You told me you had pain in your back? %
8 A Ves. '
9 Q Pain down both your legs? %
10 A Yes. %
11 Q Pain into your feet? §
12 A Tingling in my feet. Yes. g
13 Q And your toes? %
14 A Tingling in my toes. Yes. g
15 0 and from your neck, you told me you had pain §
16 up into your head? | %
17 A Yes. g
18 Q Pain down your arms? %
19 A Tingling going down both arms. Yes. §
20 Q Pain down your hands? ;
21 A Yes. Tingling in my hands. %
22 Q Tingling in your fingers? §
23 A Yes. %
24 Q You tell me your eyes hurt? %
25 A The pain from the back of my head caused the

R

MMMMMMMMMMMMMM 23478 {E R LT e R IR e R T B P p B U e s e pa e B R R R s S R e B R e e R R PE TR H BT R B zsm;;ﬁ

Electronlcally 5|gned by Dana Holloway (401 030 868-461 7) 7dcb572h b1ec 4hfa 9edb- 11ed352eac8d



10
11
12
13
14
15
le
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

TR

Page 12 %

eyes to hurt. Yes. é
Q And you think you reported all of those things §

to your doctor? | %
A Yes. §

Q You told me when I took your deposition that é

Q 2nd you told me that if you tried to pick up

you had been taking methadone, or had not had a day that you ]
had not taken your methadone. Do you remember that? %
iy Yes, sir. %

Q And yesterday you didn't take your methadone? g

i

A Yes. ;

Q And you told me in your deposition that you 2

wouldn't be able to function at all if you didn't take your %
methadone? %
A That's what I told ycu yesterday. %

Q Yesterday you sat here and told this jury what :é

you believe is your problem caused by this accident? %
A Yes. | %

é

i

ERE T IR AR TN

something greater than 15 pounds, you have increased pain. Do

you remember that? .
A Yes. .

.

c But you told me that if something was less %

than 15 pcunds, yoﬁ were able to pick that up. Do you remember

that?
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Page 13
Q You told me that you applied for jobs at

Kroger and at Walmart?

A Yes.

Q and you didn't have any response back from
them. TIs that what your answer or response was then?

2N Yes.

Q You told this Court and jury yesterday that
you had filled out the applicaticns, but you don't have the
applications to show them today, do you?

A No. It's done on a computer.

Q You and your wife were selling things at a

flea market on the weekends; 1is that right?

A My wife is. Yes.

Q You go with her?

A Yes.

2 Do you help her?

A I watch the children.

Q Okay. You have a three year old and a nine
month old, or six-month old; is that right?

A My daughter is seven months. (Inaudible) is
almost three.

Q And you're able to watch the children while
your wife is engaged in --

A I help with that, along with my sister and

brother—-in-law.
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1 Q
2 A
3 Q
4
5 y:\
6 Q
y
8 market; is that
9 i\
10 G
li pick things up?
12 a
13 Q
14 haven't you?
15 A
16 Q
17 A
18 Q
19 and a half away?
20 A
21 without the assi
22 Q
23‘ sir?
24 A
25 Q

R R S T T T

Electronlcally slgned by Dana Holloway {401-030-86
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something that's difficult to do, is it not?

transport the things that you sell back and forth to the flea
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Page 14

TE e ERERERERE AR

But you're there doing that?
Yes. I try to.

Okay. Helping watch those children is

A S e T e e S S

It's not toc bad.

You told me that you helped your wife

T RS T T S

correct?
I ride with her. Yes.

And you drive as far as Bristol, Virginia to

I ride with her.

SRR T

And you've driven out there before, sir,

TR

No. I ride with her.
You've driven to the flea market before?
I do drive.

I ride with her. And on occasion,

And you drive to your doctor, which is an hour

T TR L L o U A P oo e R

I very seldom ever drive. And it is never
stance of someone.

What kind of assistance are you talking about,

s e I B R s e

U FOL R Favana A

My wife is usually at my side.

You told me in your deposition that there were

s

SRR
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times that you drove by yourself to the doctor. Do you

R T

remember that?

o No. I do not.

T e s

T

Q In addition to the money that's generated from
the flea market, you and your wife also have rental property
that generates income; is that correct?

A We have a rental property. Yes.

Q And recently you and she have come up with a
name for the flea market business. Do you remember telling me

that?

T A e e e e e e e e et

A We had to do that in order to apply for a

business license.

mEEite e

Q Because the flea market was turning a profit
for you and your wife?

A Well, we thought it would.

Q When you were working at Ridge View, you had

that job for approximately 14 months before this accident
i

:
:

SRRy

happened?

A Something like that. Yes.

TRRIRRIRE

Q and Ridge View is an outpatient psychiatric

facility; is that right?

T S T S

A Inpatient, too.

Q What hours did you work?

A I worked 40 hours a week. %
Q What times of the day did you work?
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1 A There's three different shifts. I worked all E
2 three at different periods of time. %
3 Q Before that, you worked at the hospital in i
4 Scott County as a security guard? g
5 A And orderly. Yes, sir. §
i

6 Q And while you were working there, you hurt §
%

7 your knee? %
8 A Yes, I did. E
9 QO You filed a workers' comp case for that? E
10 A Yes, 1 did. ?
11 Q And you actually filed sométhing asking the %
12 court to approve the settlement that you reached in your %
13 worker's comp case? ?
14 A The worker's comp case —-- did settle it. Yes.%
ib Q and you had to appear before the judge to havei
16 that approved? E
17 A Yes, I did. 2
18 Q And part of the settlement that you reached §
19 paid you money to close out your right to go back to the :
20 doctor, did it not? ]
21 A Yes, 1t did. g
22 Q And Scott County was the longest job that you |
23 had had, correct, at the hospital? %
24 A Yes. z
25 Q Why did you leave tLhere? §

B T o s T T B B e e D D S e e e B B R R e s T T R T T R R
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1 A The position was dissolved. g
2 Q Did you have any problem going back with youré
3 knee? | %
4 A Ne. §
5 0 Other jobs that you've had include being a %
6 photographer for a newspaper; 1s that correct? é
7 A Yes. %
8 Q The doctors that you have here to testify for%
9 you today are doctors that your lawyers sent you to; correct?é
10 | A These are doctors that I chose. %
11 Q The lawyers gave you a name? %
12 A They gave me a group of names that I selected%
13 from. E
14 Q How many were in the group? §
15 A At least three. %
16 Q Who else was in the group, Mr. Neely? %
17 A I don't have those names in front of me. z
18 Q Do you remember when I took your deposition 3
19 and asked you who had referred you to these doctors? %
20 A Yes. %
21 Q Do you remember being -- what you said, %
22 confused about that? i
;

23 A Yes, 1 do. %
24 Q How come you weren't confused yesterday? 3
25 A I don't know. é
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Q You. told your doctors that you had hurt your
knees in this accident, did you not?

A I told them my knee was hurt. T didn't say it
was due to the accident.

Q You didn't tell them that you hurt your knee
in this accident? Is that what you're telling this jury today?

A No. I didn't tell them that it was due to the
accident. I said my knee was hurt. I didn't say it was due to
the accident.

Q Do you remember telling me in your deposition
that you thought your knees were hurt as a result of this
accident?

iy No. I do not.

Q and you agree, do you not, that you don't have
any doctor here today who's going to testify about any problem
that you have with your memory, do you?

a I have no knowledge.

Q You told me that you had this TENS unit that
was prescribed for you that did nqt help you. Do you remember
that?

A I don't think it gave me much relief.

Q Do you remember telling your doctor that it
did give relief, and that's why ycu were prescribed another one
from Dr. Koenig?

A I only had the one prescribed.
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Q You don't think that Dr. Degnan prescribed you

one?

A I only have the one TENS unit, as I stated.

Before this accident,

Q you had been con

medication for high blood pressure; correct?
A I have been on high blood pressure medicine

for a great number of years.

R O e e e S S B e

C And you were having problems with cramps in

your legs that you take medication for?

A When I take water pills, yes.

Q And that was before this accident as well?
A Yes. ' ‘

Q In the accident itself, you told me and this

T e R R T e T e e e L R A

jury that you were about three or four car lengths behind this |

car that was turning in front of you; correct?
A Yes.
0 And your car, the Kia, is what, about eight
feet long? ;
A I have no idea. %
Q So you think you were about 20 feet behind %
§

this other car?

A Three to four car lengths.

TR ks v s UL 5 PR TR

Q And you said that you saw that van that hit

you just seconds before it hit you?

A Yes.

<
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1 Q And you have no idea how long it had been %
2 bhehind you? %
3 A Well, you notice the traffic behind you. But %
4 as far as singling out different vehicles... §
5 9] You don't know how long this vehicle had been %
6 traveling behind you, do you, sir? g
7 A No. %
8 Q You don't know anything about the speed of the§
9 vehicle? %
g

10 A No, i
11 Q You told this jury yesterday that your seat %
12 was broken off as a result of this accident. Do you remember %
13 that? '
14 A T said it was broken. 1
15 Q The seat itself has a little lever on the side%
16 which will allow it to recline back, did it not? %
17 A Yes, 1t does. E
18 Q You told this jury also that you drové this §
19 vehicle back from Kentucky after this accident; correct? %
~ 20 A Yes. - é
21 Q Were you able to adjust the seat after that %
22 accident so that you could drive thé vehicle back? é
23 A No. %
24 Q You just drove it with the seat in the §
25 reclined position? §
i

1
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AL P ot

A No. i

§
Q What happened? Tell us, sir. :
A T used a bunch of items that we had with us to |

prop the seat into an upright position and hold it there while

I drove the vehicle home.

R e e

Q How much were you weighing at the time of this
accident, sir? %
A The same as I am now. %
Q What dc you weigh now? %
A Right around 300 pounds. ;
Q Did you have trouble ever getting in and out §

of this car before this accident?
A No. I did not.
Q You live approximately an hour and a half from
Knoxville?
A About an hour and 15 minutes.
MR. WOQODFIN: That's all.
THE COURT: Just a moment, Mr. English, before
we go any further.
I notice you've taken a few notes this
morning?
THE JUROQR: Yes.
THE CCURT: Anyone else taking notes?
Unfortunately, we're not -- Jjurors aren't allowed to

take notes during the trial. I should have mentioned

s '«~»ﬂm'pnsmmmmmﬂvx_%%;;mmu&mmWm:xmsz}}kmwmhmwmmagmmx; S A R st
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that yesterday. That's kind of a local rule we have

here. I'm going to ask you to stop doing that. I

hate to do that because I know you're trying hard to

follow what is being said. But there are reasons why
we have that rule, and I'll go into that. When we are
all through hére, I'11 explain to you why that is.
THE JUROR: Okay.
THE COURT: All right, Mr. English.
REDTRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. ENGLISH:

Q Mr. Neely, when you went out and measured at
my request, the height of the curb right next to where the man
was turning in, what type of a measuring device did you use?

yiy A little bitty ten-foot tape measure. A

little square tape measure that --

@] Is it a rigid tape measure, oOr one that folds
up, or --

A One that retracts inside into itself.

0 Is it rigid? ©Like if I held it out here three

feet, would it be rigid?

A Oh, vyes.

Q Could you take that and hold it down and look
and see how high the curb was without bending down? Did you
bend down to measure the curb?

yiy No, I did not. I Jjust leaned over.

s AT R R B I R R
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1 Q Okay. And you measured it with that ten—-foot %
2 tape measure? §
3 A Yes, I did.
4 Q Okay. And so whenever Mr. Woodfin asked you §
5 if you bent over to do that, you did not bend over? :
0 A No, sir. i
7 0] Okay. Do you know whether you lost §
8 consciousness when you were hit and your seat broke and your %
2 car was totaled in this wreck, sir? %
10 A No, I -- %
11 MR. WOODFIN: I object to the question, Your §
12 Honor. There's no proof that the car was totaled. i
13 MR. ENGLISH: The testimony yesterday was that%
14 it was totaled, in his professional opinion -- §
15 THE COURT: Maybe you coﬁld re-ask the %
16 question without that last word in 1it. é
17 MR. ENGLISH: Very well. g
18 BY MR. ENGLISH: %
19 Q When you were hit in the rear and knocked §
20 . forward hard enough to break your seat back, do you know i
21 whether or not you lost consciousness? %
22 A No, I do not. It happened too quickly. %
23 Q Ckay. You still don't know how fast the.guy %
24 that hit you was going? §
25 A No. I do not. E
-

]

d
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1 Q Okay. And did you go to the doctor, the
2 orthopedic doctor, the bone doctor... When you weant to.
3 Dr. Koenig, was he interested in talking to you about your
4 orthopedic problems, or about memory problems?
5 _ MR. WOODFIN: Objection to the question, Your %
6 Honor. We don't have any statement from Dr. Koenig g
7 about what‘he was interested in doing. And I don't §
8 know if Mr. Neely can testify about what the doctor %
9 was interested in doing. §
10 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, we have his %
11 testimony as to what he actually did. So it's %
12 | self-explanatory, I believe. §
13 MR. WOODFIN: 1It's not self-explanatory to me.%
14 THE COURT: Ask your question again. §
15 BY MR. ENGLISH: §
16 Q Okay. When you went to Dr. Koenig, did he %
17 want to see you for orthopedic, or for memory problems? %
18 A He wanted to check out my back. §
19 THE COURT: Overruled. He can say what he %
20 went to the doctor for. g
21 Q Okay. Go ahead and answer, Tommy. §
22 A He wanted to checkout, first, my back. And §
23 then go to my neck. He had steps that he wanted to take care %
24 of first. He did things in a very orderly fashion, checking §
25 out me and the parts of my body that was hurt. 'E
!
o
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1 Q Okay. Did Mr. Woodfin ever ask for you to be
2 seen by a doctor of his choice, an independent medical doctor? §
3 A No.
4 0 Have you taken your methadone today for pain, %
5 Tommy? i
6 A Yes, I have. %
7 Q Why did you not take it yesterday? %
8 A At your request. §
9 Q At my reguest? %
10 A Yes, sir. ;
11 Q So you would be clear-headed? i
12 n Yes, sir. %
13 Q Are you clear-headed today? §
14 A Somewhat, sir. j
15 Q When you applied for jobs at Kroger and ;
16 Walmart, did you tell them the truth about your physical %
17 condition after this wreck? | %
18 A Yes. 1In each one of the applications, they E
19 list different boxes on the computer. And the age that we live %
20 in, the computer age, everything is done on a computer now. §
21 It's very seldom you hand write anything. Especially at these %
22 big places of business. And there's boxes that you have to é
23 fill out different things like that in. %
24 Q Did your wife have a booth at the flea market ?
:
25 before this wreck? %

4
L S LR
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asking you about, how much did that bring in to you and your

wife?

A

Without that, we would probably would have had that property

taken away from us.

Q
wreck happ
the wreck?

A

Q

restrictions that Dr. Koenig had placed on you?

A

ened.

supervisor.

Q

=oo

@)

A

Q

in this wr
A

wreck.
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TR TR P

No, she did not.

Okay. And the rental property that he was

It brings in three hundred dellars a menth.

o 3 S e e e

Okay. You were at Ridge View whenever this

That's where you were driving to on the day of

Yes, sir.

Did you attempt to go back there with the

e e T S R B A T P e e

I gave the restrictions to my immediate

Don't say what he said, please.

Uh-huh (affirmative).

T R

Okay.

ind with the restrictions.

Were you aliowed te go back to work?
No.

You're not claiming that your knees were hurt

No. I claim no obligation to my knee for this

oot e e e S R S R L e S e
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1 Q And when Mr. Woodfin said you filed suit for |
:
2 workers' comp against the Scott County Hospital for your knee E
3 ‘ injury, you didn't actually file suit for that. His law firm %
4 filed suit for that on behalf of the hospital, didn't it?
5 MR. WOODFIN: Objection, Your Honor. I have
6 no involvement in that case. And I don't know where |
7 that's coming from. %
8 _ MR. ENGLISH: But his law firm did, Your %
9 Honor. %
10 MR. WOODFIN: I don't know that to bé true. é
11 MR. ENGLISH: And he knew it. %
-
12 : MR. WOODFIN: I don't know that to be true, %
13 Your Honor. §
14 THE COURT: What is the relevance of that now?
15 MR. ENGLISH: Well, Your Honor, he made a §
16 | statement. He said that this man filed suit in the %
17 worker's comp case. He didn't. His own law firm ;
18 filed suit on behalf of the Scott County Hospital to ;
19 settle the workers' comp case. And he made a %
20 misstatement to him and to the jury and to the Court.%
' .
21 : MR. WQODFIN: I think that would require some g
22 proof, Your Honor. I don't know that to be the case.§
23 THE COURT: I think we established that he hadg
]
24 a work-related injury claim that was settled. §
25 MR. ENGLISE: Your Honor, it was settled g
%
4
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1 across the street. I you would like, I can get the %
2 copy of the documents. é
3 THE COURT: No. What I'm saying is I don't i
4 think there's any dispute that the man had a %
5 work-related injury claim that was settled —-- %
6 ' MR. ENGLISH: 1'll not belabor the point, Your
7 Honor. %
8 THE COURT: If he didn't file it, that's fine.%
9 MR. ENGLISH: Pardon? %
10 THE COURT: If he didn't file it, that's fine.%
11 BY MR. ENGLISH:
12 ‘ Q When your wife started this flea market booth é
i

13 and you started selling things out of your house, what sort ofg
14 items did you sell out of your house in order to exist? %
.

15 A We sold a lot of different things. We had a %
16 real nice collecticn of ceramics, indian artifacts, a whole %
17 punch of different items. We sold off practically everything %
18 that we had. z
19 | I'm also two years now behind in my taxes, and%
20 making monthly restitution to the State of Kentucky for %
21 delinquent taxes o¢n our property. §
22 0 Okxay.
23 _ It We're also one month behind in our water bill,%
24 and one month behind in our eléctric bill, %
25 MR. ENGLISH: Okay. Thank you. That's all. é
|

5

i
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1 THE COdRT: Mr. Woodfin, any recross? %
2 MR. WOODFIN: No. %
3 THE COURT: Okay. All right, sir. Thank you. %
4 You can step down. %
5 ‘ (The witness 1s dismissed.) %
6 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, at this time, we %
7 would like to play for the jury the videotaped é
8 deposition of the pain doctor that treated Mr. Neely, ?
9 Dr. Joe Browder. %
10 THE COURT: All right. Members of the jury, §
11 ' this is commonly done in trials, and that is that a é
12 witness will give testimony by videotape so that they §
13 don't have to come to court for various reasons. Very_é
14 often medical professionals do that. i
15 You should consider this testimony that's %
16 being given by videotape to be just as if it were §
17 being given here in the courtroom. Give it the same ;
18 weight as you would any testimohy that would be given i
19 in the courtroom. All right. %
20 all right. 1Is it ready to go? I guess we'll ?
21 just watch that screen there. i
22 Mr. English would you like for us tc lower the §
23 lights in the courtroom for this? %
24 MR. ENGLISH: I don't care, Your Honor. I'm %
25 just making notes. We probably need as much light as %
%
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1 we can get. %
2 THE CCURT: Okay. a
3 MR. ENGLISH: We're having trouble with the g
4 audio. %
5 (Videotape deposition of Dr. Browder is presented.) §
6 ' MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, at this time, I ,
7 would like to file as Exhibit 12, the transcript of %
8 the Deposition of Dr. Browder. May I approach the %
9 clerk? §
10 THE COURT: Yes. é
11 MR. ENGLISH: Does the Court want the %
12 videotape that we just played filed also? E
13 THE CQURT: No. Does this transcript have theg
14 exhibits attached to it? §
15 MR. ENGLISH: Yes. fi?
lo THE COURT: All right. At this time g
17 Exhibit 12 will be received. §
18 (Exhibit 12 - was marked and admitted.) %
19 MR. ENGLISH: At this time, we would like to %
20 play the deposition of Dr. Thomas Koenig, the §
21 certified orthopedic surgeon that treated this man. g
22 THE COURT: How long is that videotape, §
23 Mr. English? %
24 MR. ENGLISH: I think about an hour and 10 or %
25 15 minutes. %
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1 THE COURT: Okay. Why don't we take a little g
2 break then at this time before we get into that. %
3 Madam Clerk, it will be about 15 minutes. %
4 DEPUTY CLERK: Please rise. This Court is in %
5 recess. %
6 (Jury out at 10:35.) é
7 (Court in recess.) %
8 (Jury in at 11:18.) ;
9 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, at this time, the i
10 plaintiff would 1like to offer the deposition by i
11 videotape of Dr. Koenig. Exhibit No. 11, I believe. é
12 THE COURT: All right, Mr. English. %
13 Members of the jury, Jjust as we did before, weé
14 consider this just like testimony in court. All %
15 right. §
16 (The videotape deposition of Dr. Koenig is presented.) %
17 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honory, it didn't show the %
18 doctor being sworn in, and he was SwWOID in. So 1 %
19 would 1ike to back 1t up, if the Court would like us %
20 to, to show that he was, in fact, sworn. %
21 MR. WOODFIN: I'll stipulate that he was. %
22 MR. ENGLISH: Okay. Very well. i
23 MR. INMAN: Your Honor, is it audible to the %
24 Court? %
25 THE COURT: It is to me. Can the jury hear %
AAAAA o ——————————E T em———
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it? All right. Thank you.

MR. ENGLISH: That's a problem with the

P

equipment and I apologize.

(Videotape deposition of Dr. Koenig continues.)

MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, I would like to file

e

this as Exhibit No. 11. May I approach the clerk?

TR

THE COURT: Yes.
(Exhibit 11 - was marked and admitted.)

THE COURT: All right. Let's take our

|

lunchtime break now. Let's try to get back by 1:45,

if we can. Ckay. Thank you.

BT

DEPUTY CLERK: Please rise. The Court is in
recess.

(Jury out at 12:34.)

e R s S

(Court in recess for noon break.)

(Jury in at 1:45) %
DEPUTY CLERK: Court is in session. Please be%

seated. %
THE.COURT: The plaintiffs nextrwitness, %

please. %

MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, at this time, I §

would like to read into the record the mortality §

tables as set cut, the Table VI of T.C.A. %

Somecne who is age 48 like Mr. Neely, he has a%

life expectancy of 32.85 years. Or = little over é

i
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1 | 13,000 days. And the plaintiff rests, Your Honor. %
2 THE COURT: All right. Thank you. E
3 Mr. Woodfin? g
4 MR. WOODFIN: Your Honor, with the plaintiff %
5 having rested, there are some matters that I do need %
6 to take up with the Court outside the presence of the g
7 jury. I apologize. I did not know that they were %
8 going to rest after that witness. I'm sorry. %
9 THE COURT: That's okay. We've heard some %
10 evidence and they rested. We'll have the jury step %
11 out to take up that matter. E
12 (Jury out at 1:47) %
13 THE COURT: All right, Mr. Woodfin.
14 MR. WOODFIN: Thank you. Your Honor, at this 3
15 point in the case, on behalf of Fox of Cak Ridge, %
16 Inc., we respectfully move this Court for an order %
17 directing the verdict in favor of Fox of Cak Ridge, asE
18 there has been no proof put on by the plaintiff in ;
19 this record to show that Mr. Curd, the agent or %
20 employee of Fox Oak Ridge was negligent in any manner.§
21 Which would, of course, eliminate the plaintiff's E
22 ability to collect damages from Fox of Oak Ridge. %
23 The only testimony that we have heard with %
24 regards to the accident was that Mr. Neely was struck %
25 in the rear, but he was unable to say how far behind g
?

I
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1 him the vehicle was, the speed of the vehicle, whether%
2 the vehicle engaged in some type of action which was %
3 negligent in allowing this vehicle to collide with his§
4 rear. %
5 ' Since there's simply no proof before the Court %
6 that Mr. Ccurd, the agent of Fox of Oak Ridge, Inc., %
7 was negligent at this time, the verdict should be %
8 directed in favor of the defendant. §
¢

9 The plaintiff may try to imply that somehow %
10 skidding into the rear of a vehicle is negligent. The E
11 Supreme Court, or the Court of Appeals in Tennessee g
12 has addressed that. And it said that skidding did not %
13 infer negligence. People skid for a lot of reasons. i
14 As a matter of fact, we have prcof in this %
15 record which shows that the road was wet at the time §
16 that this accident occurred. §
17 So all the jury has heard, and all the proof %
18 | that there will be from the plaintiff about this %
19 incident was that cne car struck the rear of the %
20 other. §
21 With no further proof of negligence, the case E
22 simply cannot go forward. §
273 MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, in response to that, %
24 T would just say that obviously it's a gquestion for g
25 the jury to determine who the cause of this accident E

RS

SR

i
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was. It's unguestioned that the rear-end collision
happened as alleged in the answer of the defendant.
and that Mr. Curd was driving a car as the agent of

Fox of Oak Ridge. And that he struck this man on a

R S T D T

rain-slickened road. There's an abundance of proof in |

there. It's just a question for the jury to

determine, Your Hecnor.

:
|
o
i
i

THE COURT: Any further, Mr. Woodfin?

TSR e PR

MR. WOODFIN: Your Honor, at this point, [

SR

would have to think that the jury to be able to
determine this question, there must be some procf set

forth by the plaintiff that the defendant's agent

B R BT S

breached some type of duty. There is very simply no
proof in the record that the defendant breached any
duty whatsoever to this plaintiff.

Accidents happen. You can't infer negligence
from the fact that an accident happened. There must

be some proof set forth by the plaintiff that the

B T e S e B e e e

agent of the defendant engaged in some level of
conduct which merits a breach of duty that he owed to

the plaintiff.

A T

There's no proof in the record. It's not our

AR A H

burden to prove that. It's the plaintiff's burden to
allow that to be carried forth to the jury. And there

is no evidence in this record that anything Mr. Curd

T T
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1 did, or did not do, was negligent. It's as simple as %
2 that. E
3 There's no testimony from Mr. Curd‘whatsoever. §
4 The only thing that the plaintiff can say is that he g
5 was struck in the rear. Why? The jury can't tell g
6 why. There is nothing for them to determine. Nothing é
7 for them to weigh. There is no way that the plaintiff%
.
8 ) can argue that negligence can be inferred just because é
9 .an accident happened. §
:
10 THE COURT: All right, Mr. Woodfin. The %
11 evidence that has been put in the record so far by the %
12 plaintiff was that he was driving in a reascnable %
13 manner down the road. He slowed almost to a dead stop %
14 in order to allow a car to turn in front of him into a é
15 shopping mall area. At that point, he was struck in %
16 the rear by another wvehicle. §
17 That raises to the jury a guestion as to ?
18 whether or not the car that strﬁck him was being %
19 operated in an unreasonable manner in the g
20 circumstances then existing. %
21 I think that your argument is that thelr case §
22 is weak. But it's still a jury queétion. So, %
i
23 respectfully, your motion will be denied. a
24 And shall we bring the jury back in? 3
25 MR. WOODFIN: There's one other matter I need

Electromcally SIgned by Dana Holloway (401 030 868 4617) 7dcb572b b1ec-4bfa Scdb 11ed8529ac:3d
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1 to take up gquickly, Your Honor, regarding an element %
2 of damage that the plaintiff has set forth. %
3 THE CCURT: Okay. §
4 MR. WOODFIN: As the Court is aware, one of %
:

5 the claims in this case is for lost earning capacity. %
6 The plaintiff has asserted in his complaint ;
) that he is seeking damages for this lost earning §
8 capacity. E
9 And at this point, it is our cbntention that a %
10 verdict should be directed in favor of the defendant %
11 for that issue of damages for the following reasons. ;
12 The case law in Tennessee says that damage é
13 element must be proven with reasonable certainty. %
14 It's not whether there is a qﬁestion about the amount %
15 of the damages that's the question. It's the question%
16 sbout whether these damages actually exist at all. %
17 Usually we see in cases like this the 2
18 plaintiff will present credible proof, or attempt to §
19 oresent credible proof through some level of §
20 vocational testimony from an expert that he or she is g
21 unable to engage in certain types of employment, and §
22 can engage in others. %
23 And therefore the jury is able to calculate E
24 what the amount of lost earning capacity would be i
25 based on that testimony. é
d
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1 All we have here in this case is evidence that g

.

2 a plaintiff is saying, I can't work. There's nothing §
3 to support that. §
4 In fact, the overwhelﬁing weight of the E
5 evidence from our perspective is that the evidence %
6 does not support the plaintiff's contention that he E
7 cannot work. %
8 | The existence cf these damages is in gquestion, %
9 not the amount. It's clear that the law says the %
10 amount of this damage, if it's presented to the jury, %
11 ig to be allowed —- the jury is allowed to listen to §
12- that and determine that amount. §
13 , But this plaintiff has testified that he's §
14 seeking employment. He has applied for several ;
15 positions of employment beyond what he was doing é
16 before. And whether or not the jury can even %
17 . calculate, or begin to speculate as to what this level é
18 \ of lost earning capacity is, tells us that this should £
19 : not be a question that should be submitted to the %
20 jury. %
.

21 ‘ There's no proof to support it from any other %
22 source other than the plaintiff. And the plaintiff's %
23 own testimony equally weighs in favor of the fact that %
X! there would not be any lost earning capacity because %
25 he has applied for other jobs. So the total existence §
.
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of this element of damage is missing based on the

proof that's been presented to the Court. And we
would respectfully move that the Court direct a
verdict in our favor on the issue of damages.

THE COURT:

Mr. English.

MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, the proof is that
this man hasn't worked a day since his wreck two years
ago, almost. That proof is that he went to doctors,
four certified orthopedic specialists that restricted
him to 15 pounds lifting and sent him back to try to
ge to work. And he couldn't go To work. They
wouldn't take him back.

The proof is that the other pain docter that
he was referred to by the orthopedicist says he
probably won't be able to work. This certainly
goes..

He can argue that to the jury, but this is a
question of -- not of a disability, but it goes to the
-weight of the evidence.

The jury may not believe that he is unable to
go to work. Or that he is able to work. But this is
certainly a jury question.

THE COURT:‘ All right. The Court is going to
find that there has been an adequate foundation put in

the record with regard to his lost earning capacity
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Tt

7dcb572b b1ec-4bfa 9edb- 11éd852eac8d

T o T P oy

T R

—

s

TR A et Ty

EEE TR

]
2

P B

EEEE

T B T T e e e




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

SNRFLA T

R

Electromcally S|gned by Dana Holloway (401 030 868-4617)

MR

Page 40

o YR T AL

based on the fact that he hasn't worked for the last

couple of years, and what he was making befcre that.
and T don't think the fact that he made applicaticn to

some other places for employment changes any of that.

TR R,

So the bottom line is, that's a guestion for

S Y

the jury to decide whether or not he's entitled to

PR LT

that element of damage. And if so, how much. But he

certainly has laid a predicate for it. So that motion f

respectfully will be denied.

Mr. Woodfin, anything else? %
MR. WCODFIN: Nothing further, Your Honor. §
Thank you. §
THE COURT: Are we ready to bring the jury ;
back in? | ;
MR. ENGLISH: I believe so, Your Honor. With §

30 minutes per side, Mr. Inman will start for us.

Would that be too much, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Well, do you have witnesses? §
MR. WOOQDFIN: Mr. Curd.
THE COURT: Okay. Well, have you all agreed

on an amount of time for closing?

MR. WOODFIN: We really haven't.

THE COURT: I would think 3C minutes ought to

be sufficient. Actually, neither one of you used the

whole 15 the first time. So maybe we won't use the

mu‘Mmm:vumu:ew&Wmﬂu12aw:wmzm%xi»m;zﬁ;;;mﬂmmmxmm T
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whole 30. But 30 minutes, that's what it will be. Of

course, you can divide it up if you want to.
All right.

Madam Clerk, if you will bring the

jury in.

A e T e e T et

)

(Court in recess.
(Jury in at 1:57)
The Court is

DEPUTY CLERK: Please be seated.

;
!

again in session.
THE COURT: It is now the defendant's

opportunity to call any witnesses the defendant might

like to call.

Mr. Woodfin?

P

T S T

MR. WOODFIN: I call Benjamin Curd, Your

Heonor.

THE COURT: All right. Madam Clerk, if you'll

bring in Mr. Curd.

BENJAMIN CURD,
the first witness called on behalf of the
Defendant, having been first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WOODFIN:

Q Mr. Curd, can you hear me okay?

1
£
%
]
.
F=
o
=l
2]

A Yeah, I hear you.

please.

0 Go ahead and tell the jury your name,

mwmummmammmmewm
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1 A Okay. I was driving -- i
2 Q Just go ahead and tell them your name first, %
3 please. %
4 A Ch, Ben Curd. %
5 Q Okay. Where do you live, sir? g
6 A I live in Morristown now. §
7 Q How old are you? %
;
8 A I'm 73. ;
9 Q Do you work? g
10 A Yeah. é
11 Q What do you do?
i2 A I'm a porter. %
13 Q Try to get right up to that microphone so they§
14 can hear you. %
15 A Porter. ;
:
16 0 What do you do as a porter? %
17 A Well, I pick people up and take them home. g
18 Q Who do you work for? §
19 A Paul Benton. é
20 Q Is that a car dealership? %
21 A Yeah. §
22 Q Back in 2004 when you were involved in an i
23 accident with the plaintiff in this case, who were you working%
24 for? %
25 A Mr. Fox. %
|
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1 Q and why didn't you work for Lester Fox %
2 anymore-? %
3 J A He's got a used car lot in Clinton. %
4 o] Are you still working -- %
5 A I -- Paul Benton. %
6 Q All right. TIs that the same location when you%
7 worked with Fox? §
8 A Yeah. Uh-huh (affirmative). é
9 Q Okay. Mr. Fox sold the business? %
10 ‘ A Yeah. %
11 Q and you just stayed with the business? %
12 A Yeah. %
13 0 All right. How many hours a day do you work, %
14 sir? g
15 A Sometimes over ten. |
16 Q And how many days a week? Z
17 A Five. %é
18 Q All right. On the day that this accident %
19 happened, July 12, 2004, you were driving the van, were you %
20 not? %
21 A That's right. %
22 Q Tell these ladies and gentleman how you came §
23 te drive that van?
24 A T went to pick the van up to have some work %
25 done on it. And when I was coming back, it was raining. %
|
'
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1 Q And where were you going to take the van? §

2 A Back to Fox in Oak Ridge. %

3 Q All right. And had it been raining the whole g

4 time you were driving? %

5 A Yeah. |

6 0 Okay. Were you driving on Charles Sievers

7 Boulevard on that day?

8 A Yeah.

9 C As you were driving, were you driving faster i
10 or slower than the speed limit? E
11 A I was driving slower than the speed limit. i
12 Q Why? é
13 A T just don't like to be driving fast. é
14 C What were the weather conditions like? é
15 A It rained pretty good. é
16 Q and at some point, this wvehicle that was %
17 driven by Mr. Neely was in front of you; right? %
18 A Yeah. That is right. %
19 Q Okay. And tell us what happened then, when %
20 that vehicle was in front of you? %
21 A He stopped and was on the phone. And before I%
22 could stop, I slid into him. §
23 Q When you hit the brakes, did your vehicle %
24 slide? %
25 A Tt slid. g
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1 o) And did you expect that to happen on that wet§
=

2 road? §
3 A I didn't expect it to, but it did. %
4 Q So you tried to stop? ?
5 A I tried to stop. i
6 Q Tell me about the impact between the Ttwo :
7 vehicles. i
8 , A It wasn't hit that hard. §
9 Q Did anything happen to you inside of the van?%
10 A No. It sure didn't. :
11 Q Can you see those pictures up there on that §
12 screen in front of you? E
13 A Yeah. %
14 Q Okay. Tell us what those pictures show. Is g
15 ‘that the van you were driving? %
16 A Yeah. §
17 Q The one with the ladders on top of it there? %
18 A Yeah. Uh-huh (affirmative). §
19 Q Okay.r And that's two pictures of the same %
20 vehicle? §
21 A Yeah. %
22 Q and that's the vehicle you were driving? i
23 A Yeah. E
24 Q Can you see those two pictures that are up %
25 there now? %
g
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1 A Yeah. %
2 Q Does that show what damage was done to the §
.
3 vehicle you were driving in this accident? %
4 A A little dent in the bumper. %
5 Q Go ahead and... I'm going to point my finger, %
<) and you tell me if I'm in the right place when it comes up on §
7 | there, okay? %
8 . A Okay. Yeah. z
9 Q Can you see where my finger is? §
10 A Yezh. I see your finger. %
11 Q And on the top one also?
12 A Yeah. %
13 . Q Any other damage done to that van you were ﬁ
14 driving? %
15 A No, it wasn't. %
16 Q When you got out, did you go see Mr. Neely? %
17 A Yeah. I went around and seen him. %
18 Q How was he sitting? %
19 A He was leaning back, but the seat went all the %
20 way down. It was down, but it was not all the way. §
21 Q Did you call an ambulance? §
22 A Yeah. I went ahead and called an ambulance. %
23 MR. WOODFIN: All right. ©Okay. Your Honor, %
24 these will be defendant's Exhibits 13 and 14. I would %
25 offer theose at this time. %

FTInTe I ST ST e R T e e R T D O R B a s s B R R R sz piT s T T A e LR D e B S B R TRkttt

Electromcally S|gned by Dana Holloway (401- 030 865-4617) 7dcb572b b1ec-dbfa- 9cdb 11ed852eac8&



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

ERET TR e s BB RE SRR Y L ORI SR T Y T T B RS e R R R e e e e S T R P T T R e AR Y LS o A e AR T S S L T e

Electronlcaily 5|gned by Dana Holloway (401- 030 368-4617)

Page 47

THE COURT: Do you have an objection,
Mr. English?

MR. ENGLISH: ©No.

THE COURT: All right. Exhibits 13 and 14
will be admitted.

(Exhibit 13 - was marked and admitted.)
(Exhibit 14 - was marked and admitted.)

MR. WOODFIN: That's all, Mr. Curd. Thank
you. You just sit there for a minute. Mr. English is
going to ask you some gquestions.

MR. CURD: Okay.

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. ENGLISH:
Q - Mr. Curd, you were driving a big full-sized

van, weren't you?

A Yes. Big wvan.

0 Big wvan®?

A Uh-huh (affirmative).

Q And the bumper is heavy gauge steel, isn't it?
A Yeah. They're heavy.

Q And when you gave your deposition, I asked

your attorney to furnish me with a repair estimate, didn't I?
A Uh-huh (affirmative).
Q Do you know whether cr not I've ever been

given that?

T T T
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1 A For the wvan? %
2 Q veah. Do you know whether your attorney ever %
3 found that or not? %
4 MR. WOODFIN: Well, Your Honor, I'm not this %
5 | man's attorney. I hate to clarify that in front of %
6 the jury like that. This man is not a party to this %
7 case. E
8 BY MR. ENGLISH: 2
9 Q Mr. Curd, at the time of this wreck, of course%
10 it was raining, and it was raining pretty hard, and ycu knew 2
11 that? j
12 A Yeah. %
13 Q And you've driven for many years? %
14 iy Uh-huh (affirmative). %
15 . Q And you knew that whenever it rained —-- f
16 _ THE COURT: Mr. Curd, you have o answer yes %
17 or no. E
18 A Yes. i
19 Q And you knew that when it rained the roads get%
20 slick, you being a professional driver? %
21 A Yeah. ;
22 Q and you know that whenever the roads get slick%
23 you're supposed to slow down and be careful, didn't you? %
24 A Yeah. I slowed down. %
25 Q Ckay. But you were following Mr. —- according%

r‘
il
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1 to your depositicn, you were following Mr. Neely about 20 feet
2 behind him at 35 miles an hour on a wet road, weren't you? :
3 Didn't you tell me that in your deposition under oath? - %
4 A Yeah. %
5 Q Okay. And when he stopped, you say for no §
6 reason at all -- and that's what you told me in the j
7 deposition --— %
8 A Yeah. That's right. %
9 Q He just bowed up and stopped for no reason? §
10 A Yeah. He was on the phone. §
11 Q Okay. And whenever you stopped, he was going %
-
12 about 35 miles an hour; is that right? 5
13 A T guess that's as fast as he was going. %
14 Q Ckay. And when he stopped -- you told me on §
15 the deposition that he stopped his car on a rain-slickened %
16 road -- ‘%
17 A Yeah. é
18 Q —- going 35 miles an hour, in about five feet??
19 A Yeah. E
20 Q Okay. And then whenever he stopped, you were %
21 so close to him -- you were 20 feet behind him? %
22 A Yeah. %
23 Q And you were going about the same speed limit,é
24 about 357 The same speed, not the speed limit? |
25 A Yeah.

%
H
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Q Okay. And you couldn't get stopped because
you were too close to him?
A I slid.

Q Okay. And if you had gone into the other

T e e e O R o R A AR A

lane, you wouldn't have hit him, would you?
I couldn't go in the other lane.

Why couldn't you?

B ST R

>0

I was over here.

Q " Couldn't you go in the left-hand lane? The

T

fast lane?
A No. I couldn't right then.
Q Why? Do you remember me asking you, or
Mr. Inman asking you in your deposition -- page —--
A You know, I tried to miss, to get over -- 1

hit him.

e b e B B T I e e e

Q Page 18.
"Do you know whether or not the passing lane

was clear?"

And you said, "I'd say it was.”

A Uh-huh (affirmative}. %
Q Do you remember giving that statement? §
A Yeah. But I tried to get -— but I hit him as |

I was trying to.
Q I understand that. But if you had been

following a little further back, you would have probably not

e e P A ST R
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1 have hit him?
2 A Yeah.
3 o] And if you had been following a little slower,
4 you probably wouldn't have hit him?
5 A Yeah.
6 Q and if the roads weren't wet, you probably
7 wouldn't have hit him?
8 A That's right. If they wasn't wet, I wouldn't.
9 Q Okay. And you were following -- since you
10 were in this big van, this big heavy van, you were following
11 about one car length behind him, or 20 feet behind him whenever
12 he --
13 A Tt was 20 feet.
14 Q -- whenever you realized there was going to be
15 a wreck —--
16 A Yeah.
17 Q —— on a rain-slickened road? And he didn't
18 have anything to do with you following that close
19 he?
20 A I don't reckon he did.
21 Q And he didn't have anything to do with you
22 driving that fast, that close behind him, did he?
23 A I don't reckon he did.
24 - Q And I know he didn't, and I know you didn't,
25 have anything to do with it raining that day.
Electronically :|gneby Dana Holloway (401-030-868-4617) T deb872b-b1e0-4bfa-0cdb-11ed852eacd
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A
hit him.

Q

he stopped for no reason at all?

§
A He was talking on thé telephone. %
] ind he stopped —-- | %
A Yeah. %
Q -- going 35 mileé and hour —-- i
A In the road. %
Q - in five --
A Yeah.
Q -—- on a wet road?
A Yeéh. He sure did.
Q Okay. And then after you hit him going 35

miles an hour, or 25 miles an hour -- you slowed down some when

you hit him,
A

0

you said?

T T R LR e o 44 s HE e

;) Yeah. Scmething like that.

Q and you hit him, totaled his vehicle, broke i
his seat, and knocked him two or three feet forward? Is that %
right? | %

A I don't know. His seat was broke. His %
seat -- the thing on his top back seat went all the way down §

%
4
d
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Page 52 |

If he hadn't stopped on me, I wouldn't have

I know it. But you're telling this jury that

AL P EoT L T v e T M R A e GRS

i
i

didn't you?
Yeah. I sure did.

And you knocked him about two or three feet

T T e T e e e B e S L
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1 - when I went up there to see about h?m. é
2 Q Well, you saw 1t? E
3 A Yeah. §
4 Q I thought you told me that -- %
i
5 A I didn't know the seat was broke. %
6 Q Okay. On Page 13 of your deposition... And I%
7 asked you, "And his seat broke in the wreck, because you saw
8 that, didn't you?"
9 And you said, "Yeah --
10 TEE COURT: Mr. Curd, wait until he finishes ;
11 his question, and then you start your answer. £
12 MR. CURD: All right.
13 THE COURT: The Court Reporter can't take downi
14 both of you talking at the same time. é
15 All right. Mr. English, restate you question.é
16 And then we'll get the answer. §
17 BY MR. ENGLISH: :
18 Q You told me on your deposition, his seat ;
19 broke. I asked you, "And his seat broke in the wreck, because§
20 .you saw that, didn't you?" §
21 And your answer was, "Yeah. I seen the seat %
22 laying back.™ %
23 A That's right. §
24 Q Okay. And that's exactly what your testimony §
25 is today? %
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his car,

this time, aren't they?

out?

van,

not?

FEgEes

T R

chat sort of felt like it's built real strong, isn't it?

TR R Ra T

Page 54

T

A Yezh.

TR G TG A

Q Okay. And he was looking up at the ceiling of
wasn't he?
A Yeah.

Q Okay. Fox Motor Company is out of business at

T

A Yeah. :
!
Q You're working for the people that bought them %
§
A Yeah. a
Q Ckay. That van that you were in, that big

s

A Yeah, it is. L
Q and you weren't hurt in this wreck? i
A No. I sure wasn't. E
9] And he was in a real small ccmpact car, was he§
A Yeah. ”

AR i

MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, sir.

e

THE CCURT: Mr. Woodfin.
MR, WOODFIN: Nothing further for this

witness, Your Honor.

T R

T

TR

THE COURT: Thank you, sir, for your

testimony. You may step down.

e P R S

May this witness be excused?

.":.a’mmxmmm@m
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1 MR. WOODFIN: As far as I'm concerned. %
2 THE COURT: Mr. English? Z
3 MR. ENGLISH: Yes, Your Honor. %
4 THE COURT: All right. Mr. curd, you may be %
5 excused. %
6 (Witness 1s excused.) %
7 (Bench Conference.) %
8 MR. ENGLISH: Your Henor, may we approach? AT %
9 this time, we would like to move for a directed §
10 verdict in behalf of the plaintiff. The testimony of i
11 Mr. Curd is, he is without a doubt clearly at fault ;
12 with this wreck to -- clearly too fast. I don't think%
. :

13 there's any gquestiocn that he is entitled tc a directed %
14 verdict in this case. There's no question of the ?
15 facts if it would be sent to the jury. %
16 MR. WOODFIN: Just as the plaintiff had %
17 mentioned in our record on directed verdict there's ;
18 evidence on both sides the accident happened as a %
19 result of someone's negligence, Or it just happened. %
20 Mr. Curd testified that he slid on a wet road. %
21 Tf the jury believed that testimony, they may find %
22 there was no negligence in this case. %
23 THE COURT: That's a jury question. I %
.

24 respectfully deny the motion. %
25 all right. Mr. Woodfin? 2
!

i
T TR T PR e FE R TP 0 e T TR F R R LR e H R e L L T T S T R T T TR es T TP R Jj

Electromcally 51gned by Dana Holloway (401 030 868 4647} 7dcb572b h1ec-4bfa 9cdb—11ed852eac8



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

BY MR. WOODFIN:

Thomas Neely, taken May 24, 2006, in this lawsuit. Beginning

on Page 4, Line 14. Question to Mr. Neely from me:

:i
BRI I PR s T R T T e L S F e R DT s I TR e e s s e e e R R IR SNSRIt

Eiectromcally signed by Dana Holloway (401-030- 868-4617) 7dcb572b b1ec 4bfa chb 11ed5523ac8

Page 56

MR. WOODFIN: Your Honor, we would just like

to include portions of Mr. Neely's deposition into the

B S s e R e e T

record regarding his testimony that he gave on direct

TR

ZETe

examination regarding these matters.
THE COURT: Be sure and give us the page and

line.

TR e

MR. WOODFIN: I shall.
THE COURT: All right.

MR. WOODFIN: If the Court wouldn't mind, I

TR L PR Y P LB o e

have the condensed transcript for the Court to follow
as well, if the Court needs to.

THE COURT: That would be fine. Give it to

T e T e R R ey

the Clerk.

A S P

MR. WOODFIN: Thank you.

Woodfin reading from the deposition testimony of
Thomas Neely taken on May 24, 2006.)

S T T R

This was from the depositiocn of the plaintiff,

T e

"OQuestion: You understand after speaking

with your lawyers what this is about today,

i
.3
=
:
L
%
5
=
il
&

and this is my opportunity to ask you
questions about the allegations you make in

this case, and also about your condition
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1 since the accident? E
2 "1 know you were taking some medication §
:

3 today. Do you think that is going te have an i
4 impact on your ability toc answer my %
5 guestions? i
6 "answer: No, I don't." %
7 Jumping over to Page 5, beginning on Line 21. %
3 "Question: How long has she done that? f
9 "Answer: Since the accident. %
10 "Ouestion: Did she work before the 2
11 accident? 2
12 "Answer: No. §
13 "Ouestion: Do you help her at the ?
14 flea market?" %
15 Answer on Page 6. §
16 "answer: I try to be a little %
17 assistance."” %
18 Jumping over to Page 14, Line 20 -- we'll §
19 start with Line 16. %
20 "Question: We have talked to Dr. Koenig, §
21 who is the orthopedic doctor that treated i
22 you. That's who the dbctor is; correct? §
f

23 "answer; That's one of the doctors. %
24 "Ouestion: He had mentioned at one point %
25 that there was a bruise on your back. Do you 3
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1 remember anything about that?
2 "Answer: Yes.
3 "Ouestion: Tell me about that.
4 "Answer: It was early on in the
5 condition.
6 "Ouestion: Do you think it was caused by
7 the accident with Mr. Curd?
8 "Answer: That's the only thing I can
9 figure out that it would come from.
10 "Question: Did it happen right away?
11 "Answer: Yes. To the best of my
12 knowledge, it was due to the accident.”
13 Page 20, beginning at Line 17.
14 "Ouestion: Were your knees hurting before
15 this accident?
16 "Answer: No.
17 "Ouestion: Were they hurting afterwards?
18 "Answer: Yes.
19 "OQuestion: How are they now?
20 "Answer: One knee is hurting.
21 "OQuestion: Which one?
22 "Answer: My left knee.”
23 Beginning on Line 12.
24 "OQuestion: What's the next doétor that
25 you went to?
e oy Do noway oo saaoT) | Tdobs7zbblec-dbla-Scdo-1Teds
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1 "answer: I followed up with my family %
2 doctor the next day. %
:

3 "Ouestion: Then after that, what doctor %
:

4 ' did you go to? %
5 "Answer: I don't remember. "§
o "Question: Would it have been Dr. Degnan, §
7. the orthopedic doctor? §
8 "Answer: 1 don't remember. %
9 | "Ouestion: At some point you did see him; §
10 correct? %
11 "Answer: Yes. %
12 _ "Ouestion: How was 1t that you came to %
13 know about Dr. Degnan? §
14 "Answer: I don't remember. é
§

15 "Ouestion: Did someone refer you there? é
16 : "Answer: Yes. %
17 "Cuestion: Who? %
18 "Answer: 1 don't remember. %
19 "Question: What about Dr. Koenig? How §
20 did you wind up there with him? %
21 "answer: Dr. Koenig. I don't remember §
22 the series of events that lead us —-- me, to §
23 Dr. Koenig. %
24 "Question: When you say, "led us,” wno %
25 are you talking about? %
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1 vanswer: That led me to Dr. Koenig. §
2 "guestion: In his notes, it said your i
3 lawyers had referred you over there. Does %
4 that sound right? %
5 "answer: That could be. Yes." %
6 : Junping down to Line 24. %
7 "Question: Was every doctor you had seen %
B8 a referral from your lawyers? i
9 "answer: Or doctors, YesS. é
10 "Question: What doctor referred you to §
11 what doctor? %
12 "answer: I don't remember that series of %
13 events. ;
14 "Question: Can you name One doctor that %
15 you saw at the request of another doctor? %
16 "Answer: Dr. Koenlg referred me on to a %
17 different one. z
18 "Ouestion: Who? %
s

19 "answer: They each referred me on to a §
20 different one. %
21 "Ouestion: Who? %
22 "answer: L don't remember. You're %
23 getting me confused.™ %
24 Oon Page 39, beginning at Line 18. %
25 "OQuestion: Tell me what problems you 2

T e TTE AR T DR ph i
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1 think you have with your memory . ;
2 "answer: I can't remember a lot due to %
3 this accident. %
4 "Ouestion: Have Yyou been treated by a %
5 doctor for that? %
6 nanswer: No, I haven't. %
7 "Ouestion: Have you told any doctor that? %
8 "answer: Yes, I have. %
9 "OQuestion: What doctor? %
10 - "answer: All of the doctors above. %
11 "Question: SO every doctor you have seen, %
12 you've told them you have memory problems as %
: :

13 a result of this accident? %
14 "Answer: Yes." %
15 Page 49, beginning at Line 3. ;
16 vouestion: Do you dfive? %
17 "pnswer: When I have to. Yes. %
18 "Ouestion: What do you mean, "when you %
19 : have to"7? %
20 nanswer: I don't like to. %
21 "Question: What do you have to drive for? %
22 wanswer: 1 don't want to not be able to %
23 drive." %
.

24 on Line 22, same pade. %
25 fQuestion: Where do you drive when you %
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1 drive? %
2 "Answer: Sometimes 1 drive downn here to 1
3 the doctor."” %
4 pPage 52, beginning at Line 1. i
5 ' "OQuestion: What did you do as & security %
6 : officer? %
7 "answer: I patrolled the grounds at the %
8 - hospital. %
9 "guestion: Before that, where did work? %
10 "Answer: 1 was self-employed. z
11 "Question: Doing what? %
12 "nnswer:; We set up flea markets and %
13 festivals. :
14 "Ouestion: When you say "gset up," what do g
15 ' you mean? Sell things? §
16 "Answer: Yes." %
17 Page 56, Line 23. %
18 "Ouestion: Have you purchased any %
19 sutomobiles since this accident happened? %
20 "answer: The van. I mean, T misspoke --— §
21 the wvan —-- the vehicle -—- the van we %
22 purchased after the accident.” %
23 Then on Page 62, Line 21. §
24 "Question: You said you go to the flea i
25 market sometimes to help; correct? z
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1' "answer: Uh-huh (affirmative}. %
2 "Question: How often dces that happen? %
3 "answer: Once a week. §
4 "Question: How much time are you spending %
5 there? é
6 npanswer: We usually get in between 8:00 %
7 and usually leave by 5:00.
8 "guestion: Who was watching your children
9 when you were there?
10 "answer: 1 try to most of the time."
11 THE COURT: All right. Thank you,
12 Mr. Woodfin. Anything else from the defendant?
13 MR. WOODFIN: ©No. Thank you. The defense f
14 rests at this point, Your Honor. %
15 THE COQURT: All right. Thank you. ARy %
16 rebuttai testimony or evidence from the plaintiff? %
17 MR. ENGLISH: No, Your Honor. %
18 THE COURT: All right then. Are you ready to E
-
19 move on to our closing arguments, gentleman? %
20 : MR. ENGLISH: Yes, Your Honor. %
.
21 THE COURT: All right. We agreed TO Our time §
22 limit, & maximum of 30 minutes each. 1t doesn't mean z
23 they have to use 1it. 1 saw some people in the jury %
24 looking at me. But you have up to 30 minutes, and you §
25 can divide your time. i
‘ |
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1 Mr. Inman. ;
2 MR. INMAN: Thank you, Your Honor. %
3 THE COURT: Before you begin that -- I'm §
4 ' SOrry. %
5 MR. INMAN: Yes, sir. é
6 THE CCOURT: Mr. English, you read for the %
7 record the actuarial chart? §
8 MR. ENGLISH: I did. i
9 THE CQURT: Do you have a copy of that that 2
10 you can pass to the Clerk? I need to see that. é
11 Does it have circled the pertinent -- %
12 MR. ENGLISH: Yes, Yocur Honor. It's §
13 highlighted. %
14 THE COURT: Thank you. I'm sorry. I should %
15 have asked for this when you first introduced it. %
16 Thank yecu. %
17 All right. Mr. Inman. §
16 MR. INMAN: Thank you, Your Honocr. %
19 CLOSING ARGUMENT E;;
20 BY MR. INMAN: §
21 Ladies and gentlemen of the Jury, I want to §
22 introduce myself. My name is Michael Inman. 2And I am the §
23 individual that everybody has been talking about here recently.§
24 I feel somewhat infamous today, especially after yesterday -- §
25 and today's testimony as well. ?
%

%
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1 Yes, I'm the individual, the attorney that %
2 referred Mr. Neely to these doctors. That was me. But I'm not %
3 going to sit here and apologize to you folks. I did it. %
4 Much like some of you who have a medical %
5 background, you take an cath. As an attorney, I take an cath. %
6 and as part of that oath, I am to try my best to properly %
7 represent my client. And as part of that, to properly %
8 represent my client, I have to counsel my client. And at %
.

9 times, yeah, that means to seek treatment for them. ?
10 Now, you can probably tell that I'm very nervous.%
:

11 There is a good reason for that. This is one of my first jury E
.

12 trials. I just have to tell you. T am not the speaker that é
13 Mr. Woodfin is. I can't sit here and rattle off the way he §
14 does.  And therefore, I wasn't even planning to speak to you %
15 folks. T was going to defer to Mr. English. %
16 But sitting here and listening to the testimony %
17 and exhibits that were put on, it's come to my attention, i
18 you're wondering who I am. Why am I sitting here? Why have 1 %
19 referred Mr. Neely to all these doctors? %
20 ‘ and T felt that I had an obligation that I needed§
21 "to get up and I needed to tell you why. I'm sitting here g
22 telling you that, ves, I did send him to these doctors. %
23 What Mr. Woodfin has not told you, and he doesn't 3
24 want you to hear, is he has the right to send him to any doctor ?
25 he wants to. If he doesn't believe Mr. Neely, he could have %
E

=

d
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1 sent him to a doctor. g
2 He had the ability, and dare I say it, the %
3 obligation and duty to his client to do so. He can get a %
4 second opinion. He didn't do that. He did not do that. i
5 And yesterday, it came to my attention, and I['m ?
6 sure it came to yours... You're very observant. You sit here %
7 | and you study us. And guite frankly, I didn't know whether to %
8 look at you or, not lock at you. This is one of my first %
9 cases, as I said. %
10 2nd I don't know how you look at us. You're :
11 always thinking we're plotting and trying to maybe figure out %
12 some strategy. And sometimes, yes, We Were. But at the same §
13 . time, I want to bring to your attention, there was a lot of §
14 thank you's. The defendants attorney thanked you a lot E
15 yesterday. §
16 But I'll tell you what you haven't heard. You %
17 haven't heard the first apology. You haven't heard the first, E
18 "I am sorry," by the defendant. That hasn't... Those words §
19 haven't come across his lips one time. %
20 Now, as to —-- as to this case... You know, for %
21 me, as well as yourselves, this is just another day. But %
22 unfortunately for Mr. Neely, this is the rest of his life. And E
23 this impacts him for the rest of his life. ?
24 So, yes, I am nervous. Yes, I am tired. I have %
25 to admit that to you. We do everything, as attorneys, we can %
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for our clients. and

apologized for.

admitted liability.

miles, at least an

testimony,

support his family,

Mr. Neely, who was driving over one hundred

to the job

But as to this defendant, they haven't even

hour and 15 minutes, according to nis

was crashed into by the defendant's driver,

Page 67

once again, that shouldn't have TO be

T T DD D

that he dearly loved, in an effort to

e T e I S R

Mr. Curd, who 1is professional driver. He was crashed into,

forever, forever,

taking his ability away to support his family.

The doctor depositions... Let me go back though.

It goes beyond that.

care for his famil

that he normally did pefore. This has interfered, as his

testimony alluded to,

due to the prescription, these narcotics.

children,

now reaching for daddy-

want to ke

to provide

him, those

could have

testimony wha
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Ee also has two small children. These Two

one of which was conceived after the accident, are

picked up.

that for them. He can't do that.

Those limits that you heard the doctor put on

are real.

sent him to a doctor. They didn't. They have no
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according to the testimony of the doctors, %

y as far as money. He can't do the things

with his sex life due to the back pain,

tsoever to say otherwise.

It goes beyond his ability to properly

é
They want to be held by daddy. They §
i

And Mr. Neely, more than anybody, wants

If the defendant doesn't pelieve it, they
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1 As to the defendant's driver, as he ftestified .
2 here earlier, he was going tod fast, too close, on too slick a i
3 road. And yes, he crashed into the rear of this vehicle. ;
4 There was a passing lane. But he was out of contrel. He's %
5 testified to that. g
& And they still won't accept responsibility. Theyg
7 have yet to step up to the plate and accept the responsibility g
8 for causing this accident. ;
9 Aand that's not the only thing they won't accept. %
10 They don't want to tell you, and they don't want you to hear, E
11 as.you heard through Mr. Neely's testimony, that his vehicle é
12 was totaled. They don't want you to hear that. %
13 They don't want you to see these pictures of a g
14 huge van -- steel. He testified this is a gauged steel bumper. i
15 and as you know, when you have a huge vehicle %
16 crash into a small vehicle, sometimes you might get a minor %
17 puncfure on the vehicle that it hit. And it will total the %
18_ vehicle that it crashed intc. Well, that is the case, ladies %
19 and gentlemen. z
20 And they also didn't want you to hear that he's %
21 unemployable. He testified that he put in applications; even %
22 with the "no duty" restrictions put on him by his doctor, to %
23 try to support his family. His newborn child, his daughter, i
24 his three-year-old son, they rely on him. %
z

25 - His wife was not working at the time of this :
%
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1 . accident. She was caring and raising these children. He had g
2 at least one child at that time. And then comes another child,?
3 a minor child. She can't work. She can't help raise these §
4 children. And as lot of you know who have children, can't %
5 afford the daycare that it would cost to go and work. There's E
6 been no assistance.
7 and I want to refer you back to Dr. Kecenig's %
8 deposition. And as you heard, he put on Mr. Neely a "no duty" %
9 restriction. %
10 As Dr. Koenig testified, he was asked: "What are.g
11 those restricticns?" %
12 | and he stated, answer: "On July 6th, it was %
13 written for no iepetitive bending, stooping, squatting, or %
14 lifting greater than 15 pounds. He should be allowed frequent %
15 changes of position.” ?
16 Question by Mr. English: "Are those still the %
17 restrictions that you put on him pertinent at this time, sir?" %
18 Answer: "No in effect, T should state that those
19 were amended further whereby he was placed on no duty."
20 No duty, ladies and gentlemen. No duty.
21 Further answer: "Meaning that I really don't i
22 think he can do anything.”
23 You've heard Dr. Browder's deposition and
24 testimony that he couldn't go back to work. You also heard the
25 . cross examination of Dr. Koenig that he couldn't go back to
%
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1 work. He's been placed on permanent "no duty” restrictions, ;
2 and he's not going €O get any better, as the doctors have %
3 testified to. %
4 rurthermore as to the pain and suffering that %
5 Mr. Neely suffered through with this, he has testified that %
o it's been great, it's peen exceeding. It's been so great, as a'é
7 matter of fact, that he's been put on pain management for %
8 1ife -- more than likely for life. Methadone. For those of %
g you in the medical profession, you know what methadone is going %
10C to do to this man. §
11 Methadone, unfortunately, 1is going to have an 1
12 affect on him in years to come. Aand it's going to get more %
13 expensive. %
14 As to -- this is Dr. Koenig. And the doctor came %
15 back with, I believe -~ let me rephrase this. %
16 Mr. English asked Dr. Koenig: "Doctor, did yeu %
17 nave any opinion as +o whether or not this man will suffer pain %
18 in the futuré as a result of these injuries?" g
19 Answer: "Yes, sir. 1 think that unfortunately, §
20 also. And thét's the reason why we sent nim to a pain %
21 management consultant -— to Dr. Browder." %
22 Referring to Dr. Browder who has been treating %
23 him for his pain. In nig deposition I just want to remind you, %
24 he stated: "He has not be able to return to work. ABpparently, %
25 the type of job that he has requires the ability to physically %
|
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1 restrain patients who may become violent. So he may not be §
2 able to return to that position.™ These are the words of a i
3 doctor. %
4 The defendant is going to get up here and he's §
5 going tell you it hasn't been proven. He's going to tell you g
S that they're not responsible. Once again, they want to hider f
7 what the facts —-- what the truth is. %
8 We've laid it out here for you. There's no doubt.é
9 that this man being the driver or a defendant is going too ?
10 fast, too close, on too slick a rcad. There's no deoubt about f
11 it.
12. He even testified there was a clear passing lane. %
13 And that is the unfortunate result of this.wreck which caused i
14 Mr. Neely these injuries. Which are of a permanent nature. %
15 : Now, I would like... I apologize. As I stated, %
16 I wasn't really planning on speaking with you today. I was §
17 going to let Mr. English present this case. But I felt I owed %
18 a duty to Mr. Neely to tell you why I'm sitting here, and why I%
3

19 haven't sald a word. g
20 Now, Mr. Neely, és you heérd read intc the §
21 record, is 48 years of age. The Tennesseé Code Annotated table i
22 stated that he has a life expectancy of 32.85 years. His 5
23 actual medical expenses to date, which have been filed -as %
24 exhibits, and which will be available to you, is sixteen §
25 thousand, two hundred and eighty-five dollars ($16,285). And E
|
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TR

that's not current.

T

The actual medical expenses of Dr. Browder, which

has also been provided as an exhibit, too, which you'll have

R T e

access to, 1s five thousand, seven hundred and forty-three

dollars ($5,743), plus office visits from 6/19/06 of eighty'
dollars ($80) for five visits for each one of themn. That

equals four nundred, plus (5400+).

Sty e T

The actual lost earnings... The date of this
wreck was July 12, '04. He hasn't worked a day since. And as
of 6/20/06, that's one hundred and one weeks, times three
hundred and seventy dollars ($370}), pufsuant to his tax return
which has bkeen provided as an exhibit. That equals

thirty-seven thousand, three hundred and seventy dollars, plus

ST T E e R RS R

e T R R

($37,370+) . We're not including interest on this. This 1is not
including inflation. This is just what he was making. And
this is the low figures.

Now to the actual losses. They total at 6/20/C¢,
three hundred thousand, seven hundred and ninety-eight dollars,
plus ($300,798+). ©Once again, that's not with inflation.

That's not with interest. That's actual loss.

T T L S S R e LI R

ag for future medical expenses, as I alluded to.
At this time this monthly visit to Dr. Browder for pain
management 1is eighty dollars (580) . And he stated in his
testimony that that's only going to go up. But at eighty

dollars {$80) for life, with the life expectancy that we have
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of 394 months are thirty-one thousand, five hundred and twenty
dellars ($31,520). That's what he has to look forward to,
ladies and gentlemen. That's what he has.

And his future lost wages, from 6/20 to 2/23,
which is age 65, retirement age, that is at 867 weeks at a rate
of three hundred seventy dollars ($370). Mind you, we took
into consideration and we left his pay rate the same. We
didn't give him a bonus. We didn't give him inflation. We
didn't put in any interest. But that amount is three hundred
rwenty thousand, seven hundred and ninety dollars ($320,790).

With the two combined, that's four hundred twelve thousand

"dollars ($412,0C0).

Now, as to the future, who knows? There's no
telling when this whole thing is going to end. But we do know
he's going to have pain. The doctor éays more likely than not,
yes, he will have pain for life. If he's lucky to live to this
ripe old age.

| His loss of enjoyment. Can you put a dellar
amount on that? Is it possible to put a dollar amount on this
man not being able to pick up his children? And the medicine,
once again, that's Jjust going to go up.

We all know what medicine costs. We all know
what medical expenses are these days. Think about a loaf of
bread two years ago, or three years ago. Has it not gone up-?

Think about the price of gasoline two .or three
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4
:
years ago, and what it is today. These exXpenses are only going %

to get higher. i
§

But we're asking you toO do what's right and %

what's just, and come pack with a verdict for Mr. Neely. :
THYE COURT: Mr. Woodfin. %

MR. WOODFIN: Thank you.
CLOSING ARGUMENT
BY MR. WOCDFIN:
Thank you all for listening to us oOver these past
few days. I1'll try to be brief.
vYou heard the evidence in this case. You've been
able to weigh the credibility of the witnesses that you've
neard. And you should be able to make a decision on what you

have heard.

e T T T

A lawsuit starts out with the filing of a
complaint. and I mentioned that in the beginning of this
presentation that I made to you, that the complaint was the

amount that we were sued for. The complaint is a part of this

i

!

%

é

!
record of this Court. I'll just read this to you. .
"Wherefore the plaintiff's demand the jury to try %

this cause and award judgment 1in such amount that the jury %
!

deems fair, but not to exceed two million, five hundred |
L

£

thousand dollars ($2,500,000) in compensatory damages." é
i

Yet, the plaintiff expects my client to apolcgize &

to him for an accident that they did not cause. They expect us
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1 to apologize to you for not hiring a doctor to evaluaté this %
2 man when there's nc need for us to hire a doctor to evaluate %
3 this man. E
4 | The only doctors that he presented here today on §
:

5 his behalf tell you that everything they conclude is based on g
6 what he has said, and he has told them. %
7 This case reminds me of a house of cards. I é
8 remember when I was a kid, taking a deck or two and trying to §
9 set them all up, and stack them up really high. The most %
10 important part of that deck, or that stack, was the base. é
11 In this case, the base upon which this whole case §
12 ' is puilt is Mr. Neely, and him telling these things to his %
13 doctors. %
14 But then we take a look at what actually %
15 occurred. The fact that he was not giving his doctors correct %
16 information about what happened in the accident. The fact that %
17 he told ycu this car that he was driving was totaled. %
18 You've seen the photographs. Yet, he tells us é
19 the next day he drove it home to Kentucky after'it was totalea. %
20 He tells his doctors he lost consciousness. And %
21 then he tells us he didn't. Then he tells us he doesn't %
22 rememper. i
23 5o what happens is, the base upon which this %
24 house of cards is built begins to erode. The support for %
25 whatever else is presented to you in the case by way cf expert %
|
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testimony, expert opinion, conclusions, damages, naturally

S e T R e b

falls when that base erodes. If they cannot support their
claim for damages, the opinions of their experts with that ;

underlying credible testimony, the case must fail.

et

You're going to be asked to do three things in

S

T AR TR, b0 WA A R PP

this case. The first one is you'll be asked to determine
whether or not this accident was caused by Mr. Curd, and
therefore is attributable tc my client, Mr. Fox and his auto

company that he had.

TRTIRRRS Ko PR

The second thing you'll be asked to determine 1f

you decide that that's true, and I don't know that that's true.

e P R R R

I heard Mr. Curd say that he did not do anything wrong. He

just accidentally s1id on a wet road. To me, that's not

LT RSP

negligence. But that's for you-all to decide.
I1f you do determine that he was negligent, the

next question you're going to be asked is whether or not this

AT T R s

conduct was the cause cof all these things that Mr. Neely has

e

told you about today. I know the answer to that gquestion. I
think you do, too. |

And then the final gquestion is, what amount of
damages should compensate Mr. Neely for what he has told you
he's gone through, and which is, in your opinions, related to
this accident?

I think I know the answer to that guestion. And

I think you know as well.

T e e e T e e S R S R 2z
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All the things we heard from the doctors are all
dependant on Mr. Neely giving valid complaints and saying, I'm
having pain down my arms, I'm having pain down my legs.

Because as the doctors said, there was no test to
verify that. As a matter of fact, they said on several
occcasions that the tests did not verify that there were these
radicular problems. So it's all been based on what Mr. Neely
said.

I pointed out numerous times where Mr. Neely has
been inconsistent in his testimony in this case, and has, at
times, changed his testimony. That's not a sufficient base to
hold up this house of cards. So 1if there's nothing to hold it
up, the whole case, by its very definition, has to fail.

Listening to what these doctors said, they
acknowledge that they listen to their patients: That's what
doctors do. They believe what the patient says. They're
trying to help the patient, so they give credibility to what
the plaintiff says.

They don't investigate. They don't know all the
facts. I tell them certain things during cross examination,
but they're still going to try to help the plaintiff.
Especially in situations where doctors are seeing people upon
referral from their lawyers.

I don't know about you foiks, but if I need to go

to the doctor, I don't call a lawyer.

Tt PR Ko SR ORI I e e = P R R A A B 223 T T T SR S R T S Tt R T i PP PP 2 L For R AR A R et 8 1 SR 22 CRZITITITI LR

7dcb572b—b1ec 4bfa- 9cdb-11ed85233c8d

e B L e T N e e

Fe e

e s e S e P T

R, E b R

e R R

?&z»s*z;m;‘;wmrwWui!ﬂ{sx:muummawmuuwmmmmb“:“: TR



S T T e R L DR S e e R

Electronically signed by Dana Hollowa

y (401-03

T BT e

0-868-4617)

FETREaeze2ens

TRTERE

R T

TR

TR RIS

§

| Page 78 |

1 Sometimes we see that these doctors continue to g
z treat these people after a referral from their lawyers. And %
3 you can see how things develop. The doctor doesn't know all %
4 ' the information. The doctor doesn't have the information that é
5 actually, Mr. Neely was not knocked uncenscious at the scene. é
6 They're just told that he was. z
7 and whether they're asked if that makes a %
:

8 difference, well of course they're going to say it doesn't make §
9 a difference, because they're an advocate for their patient. i
10 But you eight folks that are here today listéning ;
11 to this case over these past few days are the advocate for the %
12 system. And I remember when I talked with you in the opening g
13 about being fair and reasonable, not only to both parties, but %
14 the legal system as a whole. i
15 When the judge instructs you about the evidence §
16 in this case and how you're to decide, he's probably going to ?
17 say something along these lines: g
18 To recover damages from permanent injury, the %
19 plaintiff must prove the future effect of the injury to a E
20 reasonable certainty. While it's not necessary the evidence %
21 conclusively or absolutely show that the injury is permanent, %
22 you may not award damages for a permanent injury based on mere i
23 conjecture or possibility. %
24 When that base of this case is erased, what we're %
25 left with is a bunch of conjecture, a bunch of speculation, and %

TR R A O Ged LB LA R SR i e D T e R R A s e
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1 a pbunch of evidence which will not allow you to conclude the |
2 amount of damages that Mr. Neely is seeking in this case 1is _
3 appropriate tO award him. E
4 He's testified he can't work. But he's testified %
5 he's applied for Jobs. He's testified he tried to put down ;
6 information on these applications about his pre-existing %
7 problems. %
8 I don't know that applications include that é
9 anymore. You don't know that either, because he didn't tell %
10 you anything about those specific applicaticns, oOr bring you %
11 any evidence of those applications. But that's the kind of %
12 stuff that we're dealing with; speculation, conjecture, and a §
13 desire to try to get money out of my client. %
14 Mr. English said something on day one of this %
15 trial that 1s very, Very pertinent. He said on July 14, 2004, %
16 the day of this accident, Mr. Neely's 1ife was changed forever. é
i

17 T agree with that. But it was changed by him. %
18 I+ was on that day that, and the days that %
19 followed afterwards, that he decided, I'm not going to live my %
20 1ife anymore like I used to. I'm going to try to get money out %
21 of this lawsuit. Don't reward him for that. z
22 .CLOSING ARGUMENT i
23 BY MR. ENGLISH: z
24 First of all, Mr. Woodfin is incorrect. T didn't %
25 say July the 14th, I said July the 12th his life was changed %
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forever. DBecause that's when this accident happened. Tt
wasn't the l4th.

Mr. Woodfin didn't tell you that when we file our
lawsuit in a rear-end collision that he files an answer denying
that it's his fault even though this man was following tooc
closely, too fast on a rain-slickened road. And they still
have put this man through total hell for the last two years ==
this Corporation.

Now, Michael asked me to help him in this case
because I've tried a few cases. And I find that it's my job to
help my clients if I can. I talk to a lot of people about
representing them, and I don't take many cases of the people I
talk To.

and if I can help someone, and I honestly believe
or know that they're hurt, I'm going to help them. I'm going
to.do everyﬁhing T can.

I've lost some Cases T should have WwOI. I've won
some cases I should have lost. But whenever I saw the reports
on Tom Neely..

and Mr. Woodfin didn't mention a word about those
two MRIs that showéd two protruding disks in his neck and a
bulging disk in his neck, and four disks in his back that were
bulging. He's didn't say a word about it. Not a word. Not
one word. He's trying to defend this case, a rear-end

collision. Aand this is a case...
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1 Most collision cases get settled. They never get %
2 tried because the defendants generally settle these cases %
3 . because it's obvious to everybody, hopefully to you, who caused i
4 the wreck. : 4 é
5 Tom didn't have any control over how fast this §
'. 6 man was driving behind him. Or how close he was following
7 behind him. Or whether the road was slick. He had no control ;
i
8 over that. You heard it. E
9 And it just does not make sense that he would %
10 stop for no apparent reason on a rain-slickened road. And for %
11 him to bé able to stop from 35 miles an hour in five feet 1is é
12 incredible. It's unbelievable. And I'm sure you do not g
13 pelieve that. %
14 And for him to have been hit hard enough to total %
.
15 his car, and for Mr. Woodfin to object to you hearing that his %
16 car was totaled... Yes, he drove it back to Kentucky. He had é
17 to, to salvage it. It took him two and a half hours, 1 believe %
18 he said, tc get it back. And then he drove it to his mothers %
19 one time. And then that was the last time he drove that. ?
2C He didn't want you to hear that about it being Z
21 totalled. He didn't want you to hear about the seat being %
22 broke. Him being hit so hard that it was broken. %
23 And for Mr. Curd to come in here and say that, I §
24 was going 35, and then I slowed down and hit him about é
25 45 (sic), and knocked him forward about two or three feet and 5

e F
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o A T R

broke his seat and totalled it. He didn't mention a word akout

that. I wonder why? Because that just doesn't stand the light

of day as being honest and truthful.

This case should have never gotten into a

lawyer's hands. This.case should have been settled early on.

and Mr. Neely shouldn't have been put through by this

T e S

defendant, this corporate defendant that no longer exists,
shouldn't have been put through this for the last two years --
and his wife.

These people have gone from him working ever

since he was 13 years old mowing yards, working at the Scott

S T ST S e R L e

County Hospital. 1It's gone from that to this man living on

food stamps. And he's never done that before.

SIS

You saw what he said when I asked him about how

L BT

this affected the way he felt about him being unable to care

for his wife and his children. This is just a horrible

R T P Pt

situation. And it cries out for justice. And it's all we can
do.

They're not accepting responsibility. And I want ;
you to do what you think is right, and what is fair, and what

is just. When we sue for an amount here, we have to put a tep

figure in it. BAnd I said, and he read, and he read correctly,

i

”

..which the jury deems fair and just, but not to exceed two

T T

and a half million dollars.”

It's not for me to say what this case is worth.
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1 But I want to talk to you just a few minutes about some %
2 elements of the damages. %
o

3 For instance, Tom Neely will never, evVer, ever %
4 work again. A poard-certified orthopedic surgeon said that on E
5 cross examination. Anq a board—certified pain specialist said é
6 that. That's the head, the president, of all the pain %
7 specialists that's in the State of Tennessee. These are two of %
8 the best people that I know. And I'm not apologizing for %
9 sending Tom. é
10 Actually, I thought 1 sent him to Dr. Browder, %
11 but I didn't, apparently. DI. Koenig sent him TO him. I am %
12 not apologizing for that if I had. §
13 I would nhave, because I know Dr. Browder 1is a %
:

14 good doctor. I know Dr. Koenig is an excellent doctor. If 1 %
15 had to go to him, or i€ I had a family member, I would §
16 - certainly want one of those people Lo see him. %
17 and both of those doctors said that this man %
18 can't work. Mr. Woodfin is talking about, well, he's applying %
19 for jobs. Yes, he's applied for jobs. He's starving to death. %
20 He's going to the flea markets and watching the kids while his %
21 wife can eke out a meager existence, when this man toock care of ?
22 them all of his life. ALl of his life. He took care of %
23 himself from age 13. He took care of his wife for the i
24 twenty-two years they've been married. %
25 and he had a job he dearly loved that he drove %
g

i

ﬁ

!
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1 200 miles a day to, roughly, back and forth. And he wanted to %
2 work there until they ran him off at age 65. z
3 You can say what you want to about the damage %
4 that was done to this van, Or the damage that wasn't done tTO %
5 the van. That was a big huge van. Tt was a tank. A tank hits §
.

6 a little car, there's not going to be any damage done to 1it. é
7 © You know that. %
8 You know when a big tractor-trailer, or a big van %
9 hits a little car, Yyou know who's geing to come out second best %
10 in that collision. And that's exactly what happened to Tom. ;
11 | That's why his seat wroke. That's why he hasn't worked a day %
12 since this. | §
13 | He did go back to Dr. Koenig. Dr. Koenig... %
14 shortly before he gave the deposition -- LwO weeks before the %
-

15 deposition. Dr. Koenig wanted him to go back to work. i
16 It's my obligation as a lawyer to get people back %
17 to work. To get them pack as good as I can. You know, whether %
18 you make money on them, or whether 1 don't make money on them, %
19 it's my job as a human pbeing to try to get them to do the best %
20 they can. And the same wWay with Dr. Koenig. %
21 He sent him back to try to go to work. He went %
22 pack and tried to go to work at the job he loved. At the job %
23 he would go 200 miles a day to, five cays a week for a year and z
]

24 a half. %
25 and they wouldn't +ake him back because he was on §
Z
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1 drugs, he was on methadone, and he had a lifting restriction.

2 And that lifting restriction has been taken off to a "no duty”

3 restriction. He can't work any. So this man...

4 and the law reguires that we prove our case by ¢
5 competent medical proof. Mr. Woodfin has the right. And as i
6 Mr. Inman said, he has the obligation if he doesn't believe our z
7 . doctors, to send him to a docﬁor of his own. And he didn't %
8 choose to do that. He could have sent him to any doctor in g
9 this town to have him evaluated, and to give an opinion in this g
10 case. He didn't do that for one reasch. %
11 after I filed the complaint, and after he filed §
12 the answer, he filed the interrogatories. And when we answer §
13 them under ocath, we tell him who the doctors are that we've %
14 been going to. We're not trying to hide anything from anybody. %
15 And he sends me & medical authorization for him %
16 to get the records himself, because I guess he doesn't trust g
17 me. And I signed this. and he gets it. And he knows exactly %
18 what was wrong with this man. From day one, ONCE he got those 5
19 medical records pursuant to the authorization that I signed. %
20 and if he didn't believe those, he could have %
21 certainly gotten months ago... He could have gotten a doctor %
22 to look at him and give an opinion. %
23 He chose not to do this. This is a big %
24 corporation. FoOX Motors of Cak Ridge 1is 2 big corporation §
25 that's been scld and it's no longer in existence. §
%
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1 He's got an obligation to come in here and prove %
2 his case by reasonable medical certainty by a doctor. And he %
3 had the means, and the method, and the opportunity tc do that.
4 and he didn't do it because he saw the handwriting on the wall. |
i
5 He saw the two MRIs that were read by Dr. Yount, %
6 a board-certified radioclogist. He saw the two MRIs that were 2
:
7 read by Dr. Koenilg, a board-certified orthopedic surgecn who E
8 actually read the reports and saw the films. And he saw the E
9 reports of Dr. Joe Browder, who actually treated this man, and é
10 who has treated him, and will treat him probably for the rest %
11 of his life if Tom lives that long, or if Joe Browder lives %
12 that long. gomebody is going te treat tnis man for the rest of %
13 his life. %
14 He's never going to work again. And he will turn %
15 65 in 2023. Soc he's got a long ways to go. %
16 and let's talk about the projections that ﬁ
17 Mr. Tnman put up here for just a minute. The actual medical ;
18 expenses, these were proved --— these weren't even contested by %
19 Mr. Woodfin. SO this sixteen thousand ($16,000) goes without %
20 saying. The actually medical expenses proven by Dr. Browder -—- %
21 they were not contested, fifty-seven hundred dollars ($5,700) %
22 Office Visits since I took Dr. Browder's deposition, eighty %
23 dollars ($80}) a month for five months. That's four hundred §
-
24 more dollars ($400) . %
.
25 and then let's talk about the next line, the %
g
I
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1 actual let earnings. The date of the wreck was 5/12/04, right
2 here to 7/12 -- 5/12/04 to 6/20/06, that was 101 weeks as of
3 yesterday. That's 101 weeks at three hundred seventy dollars é
4 ($370) a week. %
5 Now, if you look at one of the exhibits, the 2004§
G TRS tax for this man, he averaged about four hundred and twenty
7 dollars ($420) a week the year of this wreck in '04. Look at
8 " that. Do the math. He only worked -- he never worked after
9 the 12th of July. So he worked about 28 weeks. You divide 28
10 into the twelve thousand two hundred and one ($12,201) that he
11 got, and it's going tc be about four hundred and twenty dollars g
12 ($420). We didn't take that figure. We were conservative %
13 because he was getting overtime during that period of time. %
14 Aand those are documents 2002, 2003, and 2004. ;
15 ) And they verify his testimony that he was making a lot more i
16 money whenever he had the wreck than he was at the Scott County %
17 Hospital. %
18 | Future medical expenses, according to Dr. Browder_§
19 on Page 13 of his deposition, are eighty dollars ($80) a month §
20 for life, for 394 months, that's thirty-one thousand dollars ?
21 ($31,000) and change. f
22 Well, Tom may die tomorrow. He may live a lot %
23 longer than his life expectancy. There's no guarantee of life é
.
24 for him, or you, or me, or anyone else. %
25 But there is one guarantee. He's got a life %
i
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1 expectancy of roughly 34 more years, oOr 33 more years. And if i
2 I know anything, and if you know anything, prices are going up i
3 in the next 33 years. ;
4 Think back, those of you that are old enough to é
5 think back 33 years when you were spending money, what a loaf ?
6 of bread cost then. What a doctors visit cost then. What a %
7 tank of gas cost 30 years agce. It was a lot less. %
8 ‘ What do you think it will be like? Do you think é
9 | Dr. Browder's office is going to be charging eighty dollars g
10 ($80) a visit 20 or 30 years down the road? O0f course not. %
11 That's a low figure. %
12 His future wage loss to 2/23/23, when he turns §
13 age 65, that's 867 weeks at what he's making now. Assuming he %
14 never gets another raise. Assuming inflation stops and wages f
15 don't go ué for the next, roughly 15 or 16 years, whatever that %
16 would be, that's what he has lost when he turns 65, retirement %
17 age. E
18 Now, these figures right here, this is what he's §
19 out right now, the sixty thousand decllars (360,000). %
20 This is what he's going to be out if prices don't change, him z
21 going to the doctor for thé rest of his life. %
22 This is what he's going to lose if he doesn't get §
23 a raise, not being able to work until he turns age 65. His g
24 ~ actual accrued losses are four hundred and twelve thousand %
25 dollars ($412,000). %
§

§

LB R R R R e T S R T R T T PR T e T R T e e T R TR LT B v 1 oo R 0 i T prta e T R E T

Electronically signed by Dana Holloway (401 -030- 868-4617) 7dch572b- b1ec-4bfa chb 11ed852eac8d



Page 89

S R T

1 Now, let's talk about his pain for life, his loss
2 of enjoyment for life, and his medicine for life. i
3 THE COURT: One minute, Mr. English. i
4 BY MR. ENGLISH: g
5 His pain for life, even though he's going to ?
6 retire, hopefully at 65, or he would have been able to, he's %
7 going to live for another 33 years -- roughly. And he's going %
8 to have pain every day. And he's sleeping about two or three i
9 hours a night. But say he sleeps eight hours a night and he's %
10 up sixteen hours a night (sic). Would you give him ten dollars s
11 an hour for the pain he's going through? That's a huge amount %
12 of money. i
i3 And what about his loss of enjoyment of life %
14 where he can't take care of his children. He can't go hunting. f
15 He can't go fishing. He can't do the things that put the §
16 frosting on life that you all worked hard all week to do. He %
17 just can't do that. ?
18 And what about this last thing, the medicine for %
19 life. I put é question mark on all three of those things. I %
20 don't know what the medicine is going to cost. Dr. Browder %
21 said it's been going up about twice as fast as the inflation é
.
22 index. What it will be in 30 years, nobody knows. That's for %
23 you to say. %
24 Ladies and gentlemen, I tried to do the best I é
25 can to present Tom's case. I don't think liability is an issue g

!
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1 here. I don't think damages should be an issue here. But I
2 want you to do what you think is right, and what you think is é
i
3 . fair, and what you think is just. %
4 You go back and you decide he's entitled to ?
5 whatever the football coach at the university makes in a year E
6 after losing five games - two million dollars. And if you %
7 give him half that amount, you give him half justice, but you %
8 give him injustice. Just do what you think is right. Treat %
9 him the way he should be treated. He didn't do anything to %
10 cause this. And these people have been horrible to him. g
11 THE COURT: All right. Thank you, %
12 Mr. English. é
13 All right. At this time, ladies and gentlemen g
.
14 of the jury, the Court is going to give you your final%
15 instructions and your jury charge. You will get a ;
lé6 copy of this to take back to the jury room with you, %
17 but I always read it anyway before you go back. §
18 JURY CHARGE :
i9 Now that you have heard and seen all the evidence §
20 in this case, and have heard the final argument of the %
21 attorneys, it is my duty to instruct you on the law which %
22 governs this case. é
23 It is your duty as jurors to follow the law as %
24 stated in these instructions, and to apply the rules of law to %
25 the facts as you find them from the evidence in this case. You_i

TR A R S T SRR R R B Sy e e T R T T A T R s ST R R e e e R S TR Pt LTS o LIS ROR TRer oA i BT b é:
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Page 91
out any one instruction as stating the law by

vou should consider all these instructions as a whole.

You were selected and sworn as jurors in this

lawsuit to decide the issues of facts and to apply the law to

those facts as the Court

You are to
prejudice to any party.
jurors to be governed by
“opinion.

The Court,

gives the law to you.
perform this duty without any bias or
Our system of law does not permit

sympathy, prejudice, or public

the parties, and the public expect

that you will carefully and impartially consider all the

evidence in the

and arrive at a verdict that you think is just, fair,

right,

The issues

Number one,

negligent?

Number two,

Ridge's,
Thomas Neely?

Number
compensatory damages
entitled to recover?

Let me

This, cof course,

I T L R

Electromcally sugned by Dana Holloway (401 030 868-4617)

negligénce a legal cause of injuries to the

is a civil case.

(HEm e e R R R

case, follow the law as stated by the Court,

and

under all of the proof.

for you to decide are as follows:
was the defendant, Fox of QOak Ridge,
Fox of Oak

was the defendant,

plaintiff

three, if so, what is the total amount of

that the plaintiff Thomas Neely is

talk to you about burden of proof again.

The plaintiff has a burden

G e R R T R s S T TR e St
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1 of proving the case by what 1is called the preponderance of the %
2 evidence. That means the plaintiff has to produce evidence é
3 which, considered in light of all the facts, leads you to ;
4 pelieve that what the plaintiff claims is more likely true than %
5 nct. %
6 To put it differently, if you were to put the é
7 plaintiff's and the defendant's evidence on opposite sides of a %
8 scale, the plaintiff's evidence will have toO make the scales i
9 tip somewhat on the plaintiff's side. If the plaintiff fails E
10 to meet this burden, the verdict must be for the defendant. i
11 Those of you whc have sat on criminal cases have §
12 heard the term "proof pbeyond a reasonable doubt.” That §
13 requirement does not apply to a civil case like this one. And %
14 you should therefore put that out of your mind. %
15 Generally speaking, there are two types of %
16 evidence from which you as jurors may properly find the truth %
17 as to the facts of this case. %
18 . One is direct evidence, such as the testimony of %
19 an eyewitness. | %
20 The other is indirect or circumstantial evidence. %
21 This is proof of a change of circumstances pointing to the §
22 existence, or the nonexistence of certain facts. %
23 Circumstantiél evidence proves the fact from which an inference %
24 may be drawn. %
25 Let me talk to you about impeachment. What we %
]

é;
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1 call impeaching a witness is showing that a witness may not be %
2 telling the truth, and it may be done in variocus ways. ?
3 One well recognized method of impeaching a %
4 witness is by rigorous Cross examination to involve the witness%
5 in contradictions or misrepresentation about ﬁaterial matters %
o in the lawsuit that the witness cannct, or does not, explain. ;
7 Another method is to prove that the witness has §
8 made Statements out of court that contradict statements made by_%
9 him on the witness stand about material matters. | :é
10 Just how much any method of impeachment may have %
11 succeeded in this case is a matter for you, the jury, to %
12 determine. %
i3 | When a witness is impeached, or isg shown to have %
14 made contradictory statements, or is shown to have told an %
15 untruth about a material matter, it is entirely proper for you %
16 to disregard his or her testimony altogether, except where it §
17 is corroborated by other credible evidence. E
!

18 Even an impeached witness, however, may tell the ;
19 truth. And if you believe such a witness has told the truth, i
20 you must weigh the witness' testimony just as you weigh the §
!

21 testimony of other witnesses. %
22 It is also possible for a witness to be honestly %
23 mistaken about certain facts. And you may consider the é
24 circumstances under which any prior statements were made. %
25 If there were any conflict in the evidence, you §
%

:

S |
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should reconcile it if you can without hastily or rashly

s ]

concluding that any witness has sworn falsely. For the law

presumes that every witness has told, or tried to tell the

A PR o T

truth. And this presumption prevails until the contrary is
made to appear.

Any evidence to which and objection was sustained

e S TR TR

by the Court, or any evidence which you were told to disregard,

must be entirely disregarded. And anything you may have seen
or heard outside of the proper course of the trial touching the
merits of this action is not evidence, and must also be

entirely disregarded by you.

Statements and arguments of the attorneys are not
evidence in this case, except when they're made as &

stipulation of the facts. But when the attorneys representing

T e e L ST

both sides do stipulate, or agree, to a particular fact, you

must accept that fact as having been conclusively proved. %

T

The parties have stipulated that on July 12,

2004, Benjamin Curd was operating a Chevrclet van as the agent

R

of the defendant, Fox of Oak Ridge, Inc. ‘There was a motor

vehicle collision between the defendant's van and the
automobile driven by the plaintiff, Thomas Neely.

I'11 make a few comments now about witnesses.
You are not bound to decide any issue of fact in accordance

with the testimony of any number of witnesses which does not

R T e s e e R

produce in your minds belief in the likelihood of truth as

g

[

]
%
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1 against the testimony of a lesser number of witness, or other %
2 avidence which does produce such belief in your mind. g
3 In other words, the test is not which side brings;
4 the greater number of witness, or presents the greater guantity %
5 of evidence, but which witness and which evidence appeals to §
:
a your minds as being the most accurate and otherwise E
7 trustworthy. z
8 The testimony of a single witness which produces §
9 in your mind belief in the likelihood of truth is sufficient §
10 for the proof of any fact, and would justify a verdict in
il accordance with such testimony, even though a number of
12 witnesses may have testified to the contrary, if after 5
13 consideration of all the evidence in the case you hold greater |
14 pelief in the accuracy and reliability of the one witness. §
15 Now, during the trial of this case, certain %
16 testimony has been shown to you by way of video depositions. é
17 These are sworn answers to questions asked of witnesses in g
18 " advance of trial by the attorneys for the parties. Testimony 2
12 0f a witness certainly may be presented in this form. g
20 This testimony is entitled to the same §
21 consideration, and.is to be judged as to credibility, and z
22 welighed, and otherwise considered by you the same as 1f these %
23 witnesses had been present and had testified in court. %
24 You have heard testimony from expert witnesses in %
25 this case. In this case they were medical doctors. An expert
-
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1 witness is a person with special knowledge or expérience that %
2 allows the witness to give an opinion. You do not have to §
3 accept an expert's opinion. In deciding how much weight to %
4 give each expert's opinion, you should consider the witness' z
5 qualification, experience, and how the expert witness reached %
o his opinion. é
7 Remember that you alone decide how much of a %
8 witness' testimony to believe and how much weight it deserves. %
g Now, the defendant in this case, Fox of Oak E
10 Ridge, is a corporation. This case should be considered and é
11 decided by you as an action between persons of equal standing %
12 in the community of equal worth, and holding the same or ?
13 similar situations in life. %
14 The fact that the defendant in this case is a E
15 corporation must not prejudice you in your deliberation or in
16 your verdict. You may not discriminate betﬁeen corporations %
17 and natural individuals. Both are persons in the eyes of the %
18 1aw. BAnd both are entitled to the same fair and impartial ?
19 consideration, and to Jjustice by the same legal standard. ?
20 I want to explain to you now what we call %
!
21 respondeat superior liability. A corporation may act only %
22 through natural persons as its agent or employees. In general, é
23 any agent or employee of a corporation may bind the corporation 3
24 by the actions done and statements made while acting within the %
25 scope of the authority as delegated to the agent or the %
|
é
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1 - employee by the corporation. Or within the scope of the agent g
2 or employee's duties as an employee of the corporation. é
3 : I want to talk to you now about damages. A %
4 plaintiff is entitled to recover compensation for an injury §
5 that was legally caused by the negligent conduct of a g
6 defendant. %
7 In this case, the plaintiff has the burden of §
8 proving that the defendant was at fault. In this case, this r
9 means the plaintiff has the burden of proving that the
10 defendant was negligent. And two; that the negligence was a
11 legal cause of injury to the plaintiff. | ;
12 Negligence is the failure to use reasonable care. §
13 Tt is either doing something that a reasonably careful person %
14 would not do, or the failure to do something that a reascnably N
15 careful person would do under circumstances similar to those
1o shown by the evidence. %
17 A person may assume that every other person will g
18 use reasonable care unless the circumstances indicate the %
19 contrary to a reasonably careful person. %
20 The second part of fault is legal cause. A legal i
21 cause of an injury is a cause which in natural and continuous §
22 sequence produces an injury, and without which the injury would i
23 not have occurred. A single injury can be caused by a §
24 negligent act or omission of one Or more persens. %
25 Tf you find that a party was negligent, and that %
é
i
d
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1 the negligence was a legal cause of the injury or damages for ;
2 which a claim was made, you have found that party to be at %
3 fault. %
4 The plaintiff has the burden to prove the §
5 defendant's fault. If the plaintiff fails to do se¢, you should g
s
6 find no fault on the part of the defendant. %
7 ' I want to talk to you now about the concept %
8 called negligence per se. A person who viclates a statute oOr §
9 ordinance is negligent. However, a person violating a statute g
10 or ordinance is not at fault unless you alsc find that the é
11 violation was a legal cause of the injury or damage for which a z
i2 claim has been made. %
13 The plaintiff in this case alleges that the %
14 defendant Fox of Oak Ridge's employee, Mr. Curd, viclated the é
15 following statute as set forth in §55-8-124 (a) of the Tennessee %
1o Code Annotated: "The driverrof a motor vehicle shall not %
17 follow another vehicle more closely than is reasonable and é
18 prudent, having due regard for the speed of such vehicles and %
19 the traffic upon and the condition of the Highway." %
20 T want to talk to you now about damages. If you
21 find in favor of the plaintiff, you should assess damages 1in an ;
22 amount that would reasonably compensate him for each cof z
23 following elements of loss or harm, if any, that he has g
24 suffered, or will suffer, as a legal result of the fault of the %
25 defendant. Each of these elements of.damages is separate. You %
.
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may not duplicate damages for any element by also including

P R S

that same loss Or harm in another element of damage.

The plaintiff Thomas Neely shall be awardea the
following elements of damage experienced in the past, 1if any:
Physical pain and suffering; mental or emotional pain and
suffering, including anguish; distress; fear; humiliation;

grief; shame or worry; loss of capacity for the enjoyment of

"—'WWW:“'"xmmwm%mmmwmmmme;mu

1ife; or disfigurement.

vou shall also award compensation for the present
cash value of: Physical pain and suffering; mental or
emotional pain and suffering, including anguish; distress;

fear; humiliation; grief; shame or worry; loss of capacity for

T T Hr AT T e G AT ne

the enjoyment of 1ife; or disfigurement reasonably certain to
be experienced by a party in the future.
There is no set mathematical formula for

computing reascnable compensation for physical pain and

R T S TErRrRe!

suffering, mental or emoticnal pain and suffering, loss of
capacity for the enjoyment of 1ife, disfigurement; nor is the
opinion of any witness required as tO the amount of such

compensation.

2 ..miﬁmﬁmmwaﬁiﬁmmammm

Tn making an award for such damages, you must use

E I T I AT

your best judgment and establish an amount of damages that is
fair and reasonable in light of the evidence before you.
The next element of damages that the plaintiff

Thomas Neely may recoverl is for reasonable and necessary

mwa&mxwmmgma@mm@mmsmemmwmzm
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1 expenses for medical care, services and supplies actually given %
2 ' in the treatment of a party as shown by the evidence. and the ?
3 present cash value of medical expenses reasonably certain to be é
4 required in the future. %
5 - The next element of damages that the plaintiff %
o Thomas Neely can recover is the value of the ability to earn %
7 money that has been lost in the past, and the present cash é
8 value of the ability to earn money that 1is reasonably certain ;
-

9 to be lost in the future. i
10 In deciding what, if any, awards should be %
.

11 made for the loss of the ability to earn, OI loss of earning ?
12 capacity, you should consider any evidence of the party's %
13 earning capacity, including among other things, the party's %
14 health, age, character, occupation, past earnings, %
15 intelligence, skill, talent, experience and record of %
16 employment. The loss of the ability to earn meney may include, §
17 put is not limited to, aﬁtual loss of income. é
18 plaintiff Thomas Neely a2lso claims damages for %
19 permanent injury. To recover damages for permanent injury, the i
20 plaintiff must prove the future effect of the injury with %
21 reasonable certainty. While it is not necessaly that the é
22 evidence show conclusively or absolutely that the injury is %
23 permanent, you may not award damages for a permanent injury i
24 based upon a mere conjection or a possibility. %
25 In determining any damages arising in the future, %
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1 - you must not multiply a dollar amount by the length of time you |
2 think the damages will continue, or by the number of years the %
.

3 plaintiff is likely to live. Instead, you must determine the %
4 present cash value of the damages you have determined the %
5 plaintiff is entitled to recover. %
:

6 In using the expression "present cash value" in ?
7 rhese instructions, present cash value means the sum of money %
8 needed now, which when added to what that sum may reasonably be %
9 expected to earn in the future when invested, would eqgual the %
10 amount cof the damages, expenses, or earnings at the time in the §
11 future when the damages from the injury will be suffered, or E
12 the expenses must be paid, or the earnings would have been g
13 received. %
14 You should also consider the impact of inflation,é
15 - it's impact on wages, and it's impact on purchasing power in E
g

16 determining the present cash value of future damages. Damages %
17 for future pain and suffering, or disability, are alsc reduced §
18 to present value. %
:

19 As shown by the actuarial tables, the plaintiff g
20 Tom Neely's 1ife expectancy is 32.85 years. This life E
21 expectancy is not conclusive., It's an average life expectancy §
22 of persons who have reached a certain age. You should be aware %
.23 that many persons live longer, and many die sooner than the %
24 average. %
25 ' However, this figure may be considered by you in %
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1 connection with other evidence relating to the probable life %
2 expectancy of the plaintiff, including evidence of the %
3 plaintiff's nealth, occupaticn, habits and other activities. §
4 You are not regqulred to assume that a person z
5 would have lived the number of years specified in the life %
6 expectancy table. All persons do not live to the age of z
7 expectancy, of course. So you will take all of the evidence %
8 before you into consideration in deciding how much weight to %
9 give to the evidénce provided by proof of expected life %
10 expectancy. _%
11 all right. Here are your closing instructions. é
12 . The fact that I have given you instructions %
13 concerning the issue of the plaintiff's damages should not be ;
14 interpreted in any way as an indication that the Court believes %
15 that the plaintiff should or should not prevail in this case. %
16 That is for you, members of the jury, to decide. |
17 Members of the jury, you must have no prejudice, é
18 bias or sympathy for or against either party in this lawsuit. %
19 Sympathy or nhostility has no place in the trial of a lawsuit or %
20 the making up of'your mind as to what your verdict shall be. %
21 Do not permit any such personal consideration to enter into %
22 your deliberation. i
23 vour verdict must represent the considered %
24 judgment of each juror. In order to return a verdict, it is §
25 necessary that each juror agree to the verdict. In other %
§

|

HoSEsE8s {EETETI T 2 TR SRR TR T T AT R R S R L e T T T T e T R R T FE L AL HE S o R T HERER ETRALTAL R EL

Eloctronically signed by Dana Holloway (401-030-868-4617) 7dcb572h-biec-dbfa-9cdb-11ed852eaced



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Electronically sighed by Dana Holloway (401-030-868-461

HEEET DT T T T R T H E R R T s T B A A R R e R S T T T

7 2dcb572b-blec-abfa-9cdb-11ed852eacsd

Page 103

words, your verdict must be unanimous. And the Court is going
to confirm that your verdict is unanimous when you return your
verdict.

It is your duty as jurors to consult with one
another and to deliberate with a view to reaching an agreement,
if you can do so without violence to individual judgment. Each
of you must decide the case for yourself, but only after an
impartial consideration of all of the evidence with your fellow
jurors.

In the course of your deliberations, do not
hesitate to re-examine your own views and change your cpinion
if you are convinced that it is erroneous. But do not
surrender your honest conviction as to the weight or effect of
evidence solely because of the opinion of your fellow jurors,
or for the mere purpose of returning a verdict.

Remember at all times you are not partisan, you
are the judges. You are the judges of the facts in this case.
Your sole interest is to seek the truth from the evidence.

Upon retiring to the jury room, you will first
select cne of your members to be fhe foreperson of the jury.
The foreperson will preside over your deliberations and be your
spokesperson in court.

When you have reached a verdict, let the court
security officer know, and you will return here to deliver your

verdict.

%
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A verdict form has been prepared for your use,

S e R TR

TR R T

which I will now explain to you. This is the verdict form. It
has three gquestions.

The first question is: Was the defendant Fox of

aries

Oak Ridge, Inc. negligent?

You will either answer yes or no to that gquestion.
If your answer is no, you simply have your foreperson

sign the form and return to the court.

If your answer is yes, you go to number two: Was

the defendant Fox of QOak Ridge's negligence a legal cause of

&
=
5
]
5
5
5
]
i

injury to the plaintiff Thomas Neely?
If your answer to that question is yes, you'll go
to the third question, which is: What is the total amount of

compensatory damages that the plaintiff Thomas Neely is

G T R s R

entitled to recover?

Whatever your verdict is, it must be signed and

PR

dated by the foreperson of the jury. And it must state that

TR

yvour decision must be unanimous.

Finally, keep in mind that you should not reveal

to any person, including the Court, how you stand numerically

or otherwise on the questions before you until after you have

If it should become necessary during your
deliberations to communicate with the Court, you must do so by

sending me a note signed by your foreperson and breught to me

et B B e e

eri i
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1 by the Court Security Officer. And hopefully that won't be i
2 necessary, but we'll have something for you to write on if it i
3 1s necessary. ?
4 Finally, the Court wants to emphasize that é
5 nothing that has been said in these instructions, or nothing %
6 that the Court did during the course of the trial was meant to E
7 suggest or convey in any way or manner to you any suggesticn as §
8 to what the Court thinks your verdict should be. ?
9 What the verdict shall be in this case is your %
10 sole and exclusive duty and responsibility. %
11 All right. The exhibits that were used at trial %
12 will be brought to the jury roocm as so0n as the lawyers and g
13 clerk have gone through them to make sure they are in good 2
14 order. You may now retire to deliberate your verdict. §
15 Madam Clerk. E
1o DEPUTY CLERK: Please rise. ;
17 (Jury out for deliberation at 3:25.) %
18 THE CQURT: The correct procecure, sSc to 3
19 speak, of the Court is, at 5:00 to go back to the jury %
20 room and just inquire as to whether they want to stay ¥
21 or come back in the morning. The HVAC system %
22 automatically shuts off in here at 5:00. Sc -- %
23 although I really don't think we'll get real %
24 uncomfortable. That's what I would do, is just go §
25 ask. I wanted to let you know that and see if anybody §
|

|
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1 has an objection to that. %
2 MR. WOODFIN: DNo, Your Honor. %
3 MR. ENGLISH: ©No, Your Honor. %
4 THE COURT: All right. Then if you would ?
5 just -- let's take a recess and let me go and check %
6 with the jury and see what they want to do. If they%
7 want to go on home, we'll bring them in and excuse %
3 them for the day. é
9 _DEPUTY‘CLERK: All rise. This Court is in %
10 recess. %
11 (Court in recess.) é
12 THE CQURT: The jury said that they were i
13 almost finished and would like to have until about é
14 5:15. So we won't go anywhere. We'll wait. %
15 MR. ENGLISH: Thank you. %
16 THE COURT: Thank you. Thank you, Madam ;
17 Clerk. !
18 DEPUTY CLERK: Yes, Your Honocr. The Court isé
19 in recess. i
20 (Court in recess.) é
21 DEPUTY CLERK: A1l rise. This Court 1is againi
22 in session. Please Dbe seated. %
23 (Jury in at 5:10.) %
24 THE COURT: Will the forepersocn of the jury %
25 please stand. %
'
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1 Madam Foreperson, has the jury reached a |
2 verdict? %
3 MADAM FOREPERSON: Yes, we have. §
4 THE COURT: And is it a unanimous verdict? i
5 MADAM FOREPERSON: Yes, it is. %
6 THE COURT: And have you signed the verdict E
7 form? %
8 'MADAM FOREPERSCN: Yes, I have. ,E
9 THE COURT: All right then, if you would hand g
10 it to the Clerk, please. é
11 Madam Clerk, if you will take the verdict. %
12 All right. At this time, the Court is going %
13 to read the verdict. And the Court is going to then §
14 ask the jurors whether this is a unanimous verdict of%
15 all the jurors. §
16 VERDICT ;
17 We, the jury, unénimously make the following g
18 findings: é
19 Question No. 1: Was the Defendant, Fox of Oak f
20 Ridge, Inc. negligent? é
21 And your answer is: Yes. §
22 Question No. 2: Was the Defendant, Fox of Oak %
23 Ridge, Inc.'s negligence a legal cause of the iniuries to the %
24 plaintiff Thomas Neely? %
25 And your answer: No. %
?
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1 and you have gone on and answered No. 3. é
2 I will read the answer (sic) of the verdict: What is the total §
3 amount of compensateory damages that the plaintiff Thomas Neely %
. .
4 ig entitled to recover? %
5 And your answer is: Thirty thousand dollarsé
6 ($30,00C) . |
7 It is signed by Ms. Hensley. Is this verdict the %
8 unanimous verdict of all members of the jury? If so, please i
9 raise your right hand. %
10 All right. The record will reflect that all the %
11 jurors have raised their right hand signifying a unanimous %
i
12 verdict. i
13 ' At this time, I'm going to excuse the jury and %
14 take up a matter with the attorneys. It will just take a %
15 moment . %
16 Mr. Marcus, if you will just have them wait for %
17 me in the conference room. é
18 (Jury out at 5:12.) %
19 DEPUTY CLERK: Please be seated. %
20 THE COQURT: Would the attorneys like to see é
21 the verdict form, because the Court has got a problem.
22 MR. ENGLISH: 1I'm sure that you read it
23 correctly.
24 THE COURT: No, I read it correctly. I Jjust §
' :
25 think that maybe the verdict form should have been %
.
g
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1 more detailed. z
2 Perhaps the verdict form should have said: If §
3 your answer to No. 2 is yes, proceed to No. 3. %
4 MR. WOODFIN: I don't know how to respond, ;
5 Your Honor, other than the fact that it appears that %
6 they did not believe that all of the damages and %
7 injuries were somehow related to the negligence of Fox §
8 of Cak Ridge, and that's why they came up with the g
9 number that they did. ;
10 The question may have said, Do you feel like ;
11 you are responsible for injuries? They may have felt, g
12 _ no, but been able to award him damages for expenses §
:

13 ' that he had as well as the injuries that he received. %
14 MR. ENGLISH: It's just inconsistent, Judge. §
15 Tf they answered no, then we should get no damages, ?
16 which they did. And the damages 1s an inconsistent é
17 verdict. I don't see how it can stand. ;
18 THE COURT: The jury clearly has indicatecd the §
19 intent to award monetary damages. %
20 MR. ENGLISH: Sure.
21 THE COURT: And yet they did answer "No" to é
22 Question ﬁo. 2. It indicates to the Court that either%
23 the Court's jury verdict form could have been better, §
24  which maybe it should have, and I'1ll loock at it again; %
25 or they didn't understand the jury instruction. %
%

R T s ER TR R T R R B D T i T T e e S R T e S S R e 22 L R e T e
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1 Now, we can bring the jury back in and z
2 instruct them again on that and try to clarify this. %
3 I'm open to any other suggestions. %
|
4 ' MR. ENGLISH: Your Honor, in light of this %
5 verdict, it's inconsistent. I think I would just move §
5 for a judgment not withstanding the verdict and a new é
7 trial. | %
8 T don't think it can be cured by this jury %
9 since they've said they didn't think Oak Ridge is -- .g
10 Fox of Oak Ridge was the legal cause of plaintiff's §
11 injuries even though they thought they were negligent, §
12 and then they awarded damages. %
13 MR. WOODFIN: And again, I think in reading E
14 that verdict form, it may not be as inconsistent as we ?
15 think when the guestion is: Did the negligence cause
16 injury? %
17 . They answered that "No," but felt compelled to §
18 award damages. ?
19 There was proof before this Court that %
20 damages, medically, were approximately $30,000. So I E
21 don't see too much inconsistency in the verdict at ;
22 all. g
23 The question was very specific. We all %
24 approved the verdict form. And I think we are forced g
25 to live with the decision of this jury. %

BT T BB e T e B R e e e e R R e A T T e s B R S e e R e B
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1 MR. ENGLISH: But it's an inconsistent .
2 o judgment, Your Honer. é
3 ' THE COURT: Well, let's take a minute. Let me ;
4 think about it. Let me think about what we're going ;
5 to do with this. %
6 MR. WOODFIN: And that could be taken up, %
7 perhaps con a motion for a new trial later. But I E
8 think that's the verdict we have today. %
9 THE COURT: Well, let me think about if %
10 | there's a way that this jury can fix this situation é
11 pefore I let them go. Just give me a couple of %
12 minutes. ?
13 (Court in recess.) é
14 DEPUTY CLERK: This Court is again in session. g
15 THE COURT: Okay. We've got several options %
16 that we can pursue. And I've been going over those g
17 options, weighing the pros and cons of them. ;
‘18 Obviously, there's an ambiguity in the wording i
19 and/or inconsistency. %
20 One option would be to revise the verdict form
21 and give it to the jury and tell them to start over.
22 I don't know that [ can do that.
23 The other option is to bring the jury in and
24 make sure they are unanimous as to Question No. 2.
25 And if they are, then my intention would be to ask the

st e R T e T R R e R

pie
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foreperson if they answered "No" to No. 2, then why

did they go on and answer No. 37

e T

And based on that infecrmation, if that clears

up the ambiguity -- perhaps it will. And if it

R

doesn't, then the Court is going to let the jury go

and proceed on.

R R

MR. WOODFIN: Your Honor, obviously, you can

do whatever you see fit in this situation, but I don't

T

necessarily view the ambiguity, I guess, the way the

R

Court does.
THE COURT: I understand.

MR. WOODFIN: If they had been asked injuries

ot T

and damages and came up with that figure, I don't

think we have a question. But I'm thinking it's very

R P TR A e s S

consistent for them to rule that the injuries were not

caused based on the procf that was presented, yet

awarded amounts for medical expenses that were proven

%
:
.
1
-
%

i

in this case, which is very close to the figure that

they arrived at.

TR P B TR,

If the Court sees a problem with the verdict,

IT'm a little bit concerned about gquestioning the jury
further about why they came up with that number.
I guess we have to look it from the

perspective of the answer to the second gquestion

e T T I S T

should just prevent my client from being awarded

Fasss e e
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_1 | damages at all. ;
2 3o if anybcedy has a problem here} it probably %

3 should be me. But I'm not asking the court for any -é

4 relief. I am asking the Court toc allow this verdict §

5 to stand, poll the jury on unanimity, and see 1f they %

6 all agree with that number and the reason they arrived |

7 . at that. %

8 And then if motions post trial are filed by %

9 ' either side, for whatever reéson, we can take those up %

10 at that time. But I think the appropriate thing to do i
11 would be to poll the jury and see if they're unanimous %
12 in their decision. %
13 If their decisioﬁ is wrong, or some party é
14 ‘ feels like they have been wronged by theilr decision, I g
' |

15 guess post trial motions would be appropriate. _%
16 I'm not prepared, and don't want to be z
17 prepared to argue any post trial motions today. I %
18 will say that no motion was made after the close of %
19 plaintiff's proof, so I'm not sure they are entitled 2
20 to ask for a judgment notwithstanding the verdict of g
21 this case on the damages issue, which is what we're E
22 dealing with here. %
23 So I think on behalf of my client, I would i
j

24 just request the Court consider asking the jury their %
25 opinioh about whether or not this was unanimous. %
%
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o

If they say that they were, let the verdict ;

stand, and let us file motions to clear it up if it

T S TS e

o R R P

needs to be cleared up.
THE COURT: Well, of course, either party can

file a motion in- the nature of a mistrial even after

HERH

the verdict has been returned if the wverdict is a

flawed one.

Is there anything else you want tc add,

Mr. English?

U i e T

MR. ENGLISH: Yes, Your Honor. It's obviously

an inconsistent verdict for them to find Fox negligent

TR L

and say that Fox did not cause the injuries, and then

R s

to award damages, you just can't do that.

If they had said "Yes" to Question No. 2 and
given us thirty thousand dollars ($30,000), we would
be -stuck with it.

But to say "No," they're not liable for any

e e e T e e S R

damages and to give thirty thousand dollars (s30,000),

that's a very inconsistent verdict. And it just can't

stand, Your Honor.

TR R PO

I think I agree with Clint on that. I think

it would be very prejudicial to my client to bring the

Sy e

same jury in here that has just held up their hand and

sworn that this was their verdict unanimously and ask

them again about it and try to break it down. I think

e e |

7 dcb572b-blec-4bfa.9cdb-11ed852eacsd
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(Jury in

pamtes

we need another jury to try this case.

THE COURT: All right. Well, I appreciate

those comments. Tt's difficult

to do. But we're going to ask one question and we're

going to see if we get some clarification, and then

we'll go from there.
Bring the jury in.

at 5:30.)

DEPUTY CLERK: This Court is again in session.

Please be seated.

THE COURT: I'm sorry to
Rut before the Court can accept
Court will need to make another
to -- and the Court understands
Question No. 1, being, "Yes."

Question No. 2: Was the

Ridge, Inc.'s negligence a legal cause of injuries to

the Plaintiff, Tom Neely?

Your answer 1s "No."

2nd is that the unanimous verdict of everyone
~on the jury? Please raise your |
All right then. All right hands were raised.
I must ask you, Madam Foreperson, given that

answer to Question No. 2, why did the jury proceed to |

answer Question No. 37

R e e T T N e e e D S e e D R
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|

to know exactly what {

T o

S R

keep you—all longer.

TRk aran

the verdict form, the

TR

inquiry with regard

your response to

Defendant Fox cf 0ak

S

S T e

right hand 1f it is.

R M e R

SR

|
i
o
i
;s
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1 MADAM FOREPERSON: We felt like it was
2 appropriate for some compensatory to be given to the é
3 plaintiff for what he has gone through so far, because g
4 there was negligence on the part of Fox in Oak Ridge. ;
5 THE COURT: All right. Very good. I 1
6 appreciate your clarification on that response. E
7 I'm going to let you go now. Thank you for g
8 your service very much. Our jury system couldn't é
9 exist without you, of course. You are the most é
10 important element of it. We appreciate your service. §
11 ' Your verdict and the reasons for your verdict §
12 are your own. You do not have any obligation to §
13 discuss them with anycne if you don't want to. %
14 We have a local rule in the Eastern District
15 of Tennessee that the attorneys are not allowed to
16 contact you to discuss your verdict with you uﬁless %
17 they first receive permission in the Court to do that, %
.
18 and the Court has not given these attorneys permission %
19 to call or otherwise contact you to discuss your §
20 deliberations or your verdict. %
21 All right. Thank you very much. é
s
22 Madam Clerk, if you will make sure the jury is §
23 escorted to the proper place. %
24 And you are to call Friday after 5:00 for ;
25 future service. Thank you. g
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1 (Jury out at 5:35.) %
2 - THE COURT: All right, Mr. English. %
3 MR. ENGLISH: I will renew my motion for a %
4 judgment not withstanding the verdict. é
5 She said, and I think I gquote, "We felt it was g
6 appropriate to give him something even though they %
7 didn't think it was related causally to the negligence 2
8 of Fox." %
9 It's just a very inconsistent verdict, and I f
10 ’ don't think it will-stand. E
il THE COURT: All right. Well, I'm not going to %
12 take up any oral motioné at this time. Obviously, |
13 you've made a motion on the record. §
14 The Court is going to enter a verdict to the %
15 . plaintiff in the amount of thirty theousand dollars g
16 ($30,000). ?
17 I understand there may be motions, written ?
lé motions. The Court will take them up. %
19 It's not the first time that we've had a jury %
20 verdict form come back with inconsistent or ambiguous %
21 findings in it. We do the best we can. Maybe the §
22 verdict form should have been more clear. Maybe the %
23 jury instructions should have been more clear. Maybe g
.

24 they didn't understand the instructions. Who knows. g
25 But the Court is going to find that the §
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1 testimony of the foreperson of the jury was that the %

:

2 jury felt that the plaintiff was entitled to be 3
3 compensated in this case in the amount of thirty ;
4 thousand dollars ($30,000). And so the Court is going E
5 to enter a judgment in that amount. %
6 MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, Ycour Honor. :

: :

7 MR. WOODFIN: Thank you, Your Honor. §
8 TEE COURT: Thank you, Counsel. %
9 Madam Clerk. %
10 DEPUTY CLERK: Please rise. This court is é
11 adjourned until ten o'clock tomorrow morning. %
3]

§

12 END OF PROCEEDINGS E
13 §
14 i
16 :
17 :
18 i
%

19 E
20 !
21 %
22 i
23 %
i

24
25
y

:

|

s -
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